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Paul Hamlyn Foundation

Paul Hamlyn was an entrepreneur, publisher and philanthropist, committed to providing new opportunities and
experiences for people regardless of their background. From the outset, his overriding concern was to open up the
arts and education to everyone, but particularly to young people. In 1987, he established the Paul Hamlyn
Foundation for general charitable purposes.

Since then, we have continuously supported charitable activity in the areas of the arts, education and learning and
social justice in the UK, enabling individuals, especially children and young people, to experience a better quality of
life. We also support lacal charities in India that help the poorest communities in that country get access to basic
services.

Paul Hamiyn died in August 2001, but the magnificent bequest of most of his estate to the Foundation enabled us to
build on our past approaches.

Mission

To maximise opportunities for individuals and communities to realise their potential and to experience and enjoy a
better quality of life, now and in the future. In particular, we are concerned with children and young people and with
disadvantaged pecple.

The objects of the Foundation are to further such charitable purposes and to benefit such charitable institutions as the
Trustees see fit.

Values

In line with our founder Paul Hamlyn's values, we believe in giving opportunities by realising people’s potential and in
fighting prejudice.

We are interested in finding better ways to do things and help organisations to sustain and develop their work. We
pay particular attention to long-term issues. We are not afraid to address issues which others may find challenging or
unpopular, Whilst being willing to work in partnership with government, we are also prepared to challenge its (and
other people’s) established thinking. We believe independent foundations have an important role to play in society.

Strategic aims

Our strategic aims for the six years 2006-2012 are:

1. Enabling people to experience and enjoy the arts.
2. Developing people’s education and learning.
3. Integrating marginalised young people who are at times of transition.

In addition, we have three related aims:

4. Advancing through research the understanding of the relationships between the arls, education and learning
and social change.

5. Developing the capacity of organisations and people who facilitate our strategic aims.

6. Developing the Foundation itself to be an exemplar foundation, existing in perpetuity.




Programmes

We seek to achieve our first five aims by establishing three partly overlapping programmes for cur work in the UK
arts; education and learning; and social justice. Themes and priorities within each programme may change over
time. Each of the three programmes has an open grant scheme and special initiatives, the latter targeted at issues
we particularly want to address to achieve long term improvements in society. We have a separate programme for
our work in India.

We expect the programmes and the work we support ta have an impact at the levels of individuals, organisations,
communities and policy.

Grant-making information
Full information on the objectives of each programme, their themes and priorities, eligibility and assessment criteria,
application and grant making processes is available on the Foundation's website. Eligible applicants are asked to

send online an outline application to the Foundation.

For further information, please see www.phf.org.uk




Chair’s statement

A commitment to empowerment

In November 2008 we hosted a group of young refugees and asylum seekers from Hillingdon, West London, at our
offices. We had invited them to spend a day with us to learn about the grant-making process as part of our support for
a small grants scheme, run by them far the benefit of young people in their area. During the day, these young people
were inspired to hear of my father's experience of arriving in Britain as a refugee from Germany in the 1930s, and his
achievements in the world of business and philanthropy. At the same time, all of us at the Foundation who spent time
with these young people were inspired by their openness, energy and desire to make the most of their lives in this
country.

At our recent Trustees away day, we returned to the theme of how we can effectively make a difference, and how we
need to find new ways to help people, such as this group, help themselves. We reflected on how we need to keep
hold of our core values whilst we expand our grant-making activity and move into new areas of work. We reaffirmed
the need to be courageous in supporting unpopular or disregarded causes or backing innovations that could at times
fail. While we can offer potentially life-changing opportunities for individuals and groups, we must have the confidence
to trust people with the funds we provide, empowering them to shape their projects and plans for themselves.

Our commitment to empowerment extends across much of our work. This year we celebrated the tenth anniversary of
our Awards for Visual Artists, part of the Awards for Artists through which we support individual artists and
composers. We have continued to develop our work in India, supporting social development to help vuinerable
groups of people. We have also worked, through the development of Learning Futures, to improve motivation and the
teacher-student partnership, encouraging students to be more involved in how they learn.

In the current economic climate it is important to say something about cur spending. We are cautious of what may lie
ahead for our investments but have taken a decision for the coming year to maintain spending plans. This is an issue
we will need to keep reviewing, but as an independent foundation we believe we have a duty to continue to support
organisations whose activities we believe can deliver change, especially as many other sources of funding are
declining.

This year we welcomed to the staff two new directors. Lucy Palfreyman, joining us from Church Urban Fund, is our
new Finance and Resources Director, and Richard Robinson, joining us from Schroders plc, is Investment Director.
We have also appointed a new Trustee, Tom Wylie, a former chief executive of the National Youth Agency. Our
education advisor, Tim Brighouse, was recognised with a Knighthood for achievements in education in the Queen’s
New Year honours. Rushanara Ali is standing down as a trustee after six years. We are grateful for her years of
service, during which she has brought her experience of social inrtovation to bear in helping us to develop our Social
Justice programme. We wish her well in her future endeavours.

I am deeply grateful to all of our trustees, advisors and especially our director and the staff for their dedication and
commitment.

Jane Hamlyn

Chair




Director’s Report

Innovation in troubled times

As this report will testify, our main strategic aims all emphasise innovation. During the year the Innovation Unit (our
partner in the Learning Futures Special Initiative) published ‘Honest Brokers: brokering innavation in public services'.
The Foundation was named as one of a new type of intermediary organisation emerging within the world of public
services, known as ‘innovation brokers’. These organisations enable innovation by supporting and challenging
practitioner innovators, and by managing the drivers and barriers to innovation at scale.

Such endorsements are heartening, but economic developments over the last year have caused us to reflect on
aspects of our work. Investment decisions we took in early 2008 have fortunately insulated us from the need to
implement quick changes to our plans. While it is too early to come to any certain conclusions, we have sought to
assess the possible impact of the recession on the Foundation, on the cutcomes we are seeking to achieve and on
society more generally. For the year ahead at least we have decided that our aims and objectives remain as
appropriate in a recession as before.

The Foundation's work continues to develop as a result of our strategic review in 2006 and the six-year plan we
began to implement in that year. The delivery of our strategic aims and objectives remains on track. As planned, we
intend to carry out a comprehensive mid-term review in early 2010. Given the economic outiook, however, we will
continue to monitor the detailed aims of our grants programmes during the year ahead.

Special Initiatives

Our plan this year was to stimulate high-quality applications to be part of collaborative action-research initiatives in
each of our programme areas. We did so for three Special Initiatives: Right Here (established jointly with the Mental
Health Foundation), Leaming Futures and Leaming Away. We have also made good progress with the development
of a new Arts Special Initiative, which is planned for 2009/10.

It is unusual for us to have an impact outside of the UK and India, but we were defighted when the NAMM
Foundation, the US-based intemational trade association for music products, awarded a major grant to the Australian
Music Association to support the launch of Musical Futures in Australia’s schools.

Also in an international context, our 'Learning Fulures' initiative has been launched at a time of intense interest
around the world in more radical forms of innovation in pedagogy, beyond the existing models of school
improvement. Leading these is the OECD's 'Innovative Learning Environments' project, involving over 20 nations,
which is supplementing the knowledge base about learning with inspiring examples of learning arrangements that
more explicitly enable young people to acquire 21st century skills. Learning Futures aligns closely with the QECD
framework, and its specific focus — engagement ~ is now a particularly important topic of international research and
development interest in education.

Our aim over the course of our strategic planning period is to commit over half our resources through Special
Initiatives. We are not yet achieving this aim, but are on track to spend more on Special Initiatives in 2009/10 than on
QOpen Grants.

Open Grants

We nonetheless believe in the importance of maintaining Open Grants schemes, both as a scanning mechanism for
identifying possible future activity, and because of the limited alternative sources of funding for untested approaches.
The systems we put in place in November 2006 to improve our understanding of what is being achieved under our
Open Grants schemes are helping us to develop a better understanding of what works as illustrated throughout this
report. This knowledge informs decision-making and the development of our work.




We have expanded our operations in India in line with our plans. Our consultant Ajit Chaudhuri is now able to devote
the whole of his time to advising us. We also set up a programme committee modelled on thase which we developed
in the UK. We are delighted that Sushma lyengar, Dr Donald Peck and Shankar Venkateswaran have joined us as
advisory members of the India Committee. Our objective to set up an office in India remains unmet while we await the
necessary consent from the Reserve Bank of India.

Across all our grant-making activity, we continue to pursue a ‘grants plus’ approach, by using our ideas and contacts
to develop and share knowledge. This can range from a major piece of work to more modest interventions, such as
bringing organisations together who we can see are working on similar issues in complimentary ways.

Other strategic developments

This year we reviewed the impact of the changes made in 2006 to our governance. We concluded that our two main
aims had been met. First, by establishing programme commiftees with external advisory members, we had improved
decision-making about the development of each grant programme and on applications. Second, we had freed up
more time at full Board meetings to review activity and progress towards objectives. The review also highlighted that
we needed to involve the full Board of trustees at an earlier stage in the scoping and shaping of new special
initiatives; we have since done so.

During 2008/09 we planned to develop and implement a formal research strategy and to audit our funding for
capacity building. We were not able to complete these pieces of work in the year, and they remain objectives for the
current year.

Our appointment of Lucy Palfreyman as Finance and Resources Director and Richard Robinson as Investment
Director represents an unusual move for a UK foundation. While it is quite normal in the US for the finance and
investment functions to be distinct, our decision to separate the functions is tess typical here. It is intended as part of
wider capacity-building measures for the Foundation. We have also increased our communications capacity with the
appointment of a Communications Manager, Dan Watson. This has increased the amount and timeliness of the
information we provide. A quarterly newsletter is now available, and we will be developing new online systems to
deliver a higher quality of service to applicants, grant-holders and other organisations.

We also welcomed to the staff Ushi Bagga, Gillian Goode and Vicki Selby. We said goodbye to Gerry Creedon, our
Accountant who had worked for the Foundation since 1990, and to our first Grants Officer, Ruby Ireland. We wish
them both well in their future careers.

Public benefit

This year we are explicitly required to report on how our work is of benefit to the public, following changes introduced
under the Charities Act 2006. All our grant-making activities are directly linked to our mission. This trustee report
focuses on the qualitative nature of our work and how we have impact at the level of the individual, organisation and
sector. We seek to do this in a number of ways, particularly by encouraging innovation, empowerment and
participation. We believe these demenstrate the public benefit of our work.

Robert Dufton

Director




Arts programme

This programme is primarily aimed at increasing people’s experience, enjoyment and involvement in the arts, with a
particular focus on young people.

We support organisations and groups through our open grants scheme, concentrating on work that is
transformational at three levels: for the participants, for the funded organisations themselves and, more generally, for
the sector in which they operate. We also give grants to talented individuals through our Special Initiatives: the
Awards for Artists, JADE Fellowships and Breakthrough Fund.

This year has enabled the Arts programme to consolidate both the Breakthrough Fund and the extension of our
Awards for Artists to composers. We also strengthened the analysis of our Open Grants in terms of public outcomes
and impact, while continuing to research new possible Special Initiatives.

Grantee relationships

The biggest area of change in 2008/09 has been the type of relationship that we are developing, with the help of
consuitant Kate Tyndall, through the Breakthrough Fund. We are much closer to the cultural entrepreneurs at the
heart of our first five grants than we would normally be through the Ars Open Grants scheme, often helping them
develop their plans through advice or by acting as a sounding board. We have also changed the shape of the risk that
we take by committing to these exciting ideas before the details of the projects — such as fully developed plans,
timetlines or budgets — have been worked out.

As a result of the external evaluation we have carried out since the inception of the Breakthrough Fund and the work
that we are doing with grantees, we have placed more emphasis during the second round of applications on
assessing whether applicants have the capacity to realise their artistic visions. We very much look forward to
developing similar relationships with the 2009 grantees.

In the Arts Open Grants scheme, we introduced outcome targets as part of our formal agreements about 18 menths
ago and are now able to begin to measure the impact of this process. With two thirds of grantees exceeding or
meeting all of their outcome targets, more work is needed to understand why one third did not, and how we can
increase the rate of organisations meeting their targets. Ancther noticeable shift is that we have funded more work
including adults this year than in 2007/08 — often alongside young people. This reflected our objective of encouraging
inter-generational initiatives. However, we still do not receive many multi-age applications for adults and older people
and we therefore look forward to supporting more of this type of work in the future.

Over the last two years, our strategy for the Open Grants schemes across the Foundation's three programmes has
been to encourage proposals from outside London and the South East. We were pleased to see that this is beginning
to bear fruit, with a better balance between grants to organisations working in London/the South East and elsewhere
in the UK. We remain committed to this objective and will continue to monitor this carefully.

We are delighted to be part of the Culture & Learning Consortium that has published ‘Get it: The Power of Cultural
Learning’, a report based on the findings of an extensive public consultation with practitioners working across the
cultural and education sectars initiated over a year ago. This report advocates for a change in the way cultural
organisations, schools, colleges and other learning settings can work together successfully. We hope that this
agenda for advocacy and action will have a significant and durable impact over time.

We started last year, in collaboration with the Association of British Orchestras, a sector-wide discussion to see how
classical music organisations, and particularly orchestras, might work more collaboratively as a sector with audiences
and communities. While this attempt to generate debate and change seems to have had little impact yet, we hope
that a research project aimed at spreading models of good practice to measure the impact of education and




community work will help to generate more follow-up activity — if only because this work was commissioned through
the ABO by a group of education managers in orchestras.

New avenues

This year we worked with Maddy Morton and Jill Armstrong, from market research company Lucid, to carry outa
series of one-to-one and round table discussions across the country to investigate how we might support the museum
and gallery sector, particularly around the notion of engagement and participation. This process has enabled us to
start a useful debate with both museum directors and project participants, and to start talking to all the principal
agencies working in the field. We are now gathering material on case studies and will continue to scope how we
might become involved over the course of next year.

We also started researching last year how we might support artists who work as workshop leaders or animateurs in a
variety of settings, from schools to prisons or community groups. Consultant Susanne Burns managed a series of 14
individual interviews and six regional focus groups (facilitated by Deb Barnard) involving 58 people. Using the findings
that emerged from this consultation process, we are testing the feasibility of an intervention in this field at two levels:
at training stage, when artists study in colleges or universities, and when artists are already working participatively,
through continuous professional development opportunities. We look forward to shaping this new possible special
inittative in the months to come.

Outcomes for arts organisations

The world's economic disarray and its effects in the UK have obviously begun to have an impact on the arts
organisations we are in contact with. At best, it appears that there has been a change in booking pattemns (fewer
season baakings, tickets purchased later than usual and fewer door sales seem to be the dominant trends). At worst,
there are warning signs that fundraising income from private sources — whether from businesses, individuals or
charitable organisations like PHF — is dropping. While some organisations have already aftered their programming
strategies accordingly, it is likely that many more changes are still to come. After a number of years when the arts
benefittad from healthy settlements from government and ingreasing levels of private support, it is difficuit to see how
expectations on these fronts can be high in the years to come.

Having ourselves changed the way we agree outcomes with the organisations we fund, we very much hope that the
new outcome-focused funding agreements being introduced by Arts Council England to all their regularly funded
organisations will provide helpful ammunition to art forms and sectors making cases for excellence, innovation and
risk-taking. In this tough climate, this process can hopefully only add to the existing hard evidence of what the arts
can achieve.

Special Initiatives

Awards for Artists
Support for individual artists
£424,410 awarded in 2008/09 (including support costs)

The Awards for Artists scheme exists to support individua! artists to develop their creative ideas and continue to
practice regardless of financial or other outside pressures. Eight Awards of £45,000 are given on an annual basis,
five for visual artists and three for composers. They are made on the basis of talent, promise, achievements and
need.




2008 marked the tenth anniversary of the Awards for Visual Arts. Over the course of the year, we gathered powerful
stories showing what the scheme means for past recipients and helping us to build up an overview of its impact:

*The award became both a catalyst and an underpinning of my experimental practice. it invested freedom and belfef
into areas that do not expect reward, applause or market approval... A unique and intensely valuable gift, whose
benefit will echo fo the end of my days.”

Brian Catling, 2001 recipient, on the occasion of the tenth anniversary of the Awards for Visual Arts

“There are moments in one’s career where oulside encouragement allows your work to take that grand stride info
new termitory. A Paul Hamiyn Foundation Award is one of those great encouraging financial pats on the back that
make such a moment so important to our profession.”

Richard Wilson, 2002 recipient

To mark the oceasion, we also re-launched the Awards' presence on the Foundation's website to show some of the
recipients' work through images, audio and video, as well as background information.

The 2008 Award recipients were announced at a reception at the Royal Institute of British Architects in November.
Richard Wentworth, the renowned British sculptor, was keynote speaker and made the announcements. The 2008
Awards for Visual Arts recipients were: Duncan Campbell, Marcus Coates, Simon Martin, Terry Smith and Alison
Wilding and the Composers were Emily Howard, Evan Parker and Janek Schaefer.

“ am absolutely delighted to receive a Paul Hamlyn Foundation Award for Composers. To be given a grant with
no hidden agenda equates to artistic freedom and for a composer there is no greater privilege. It is a life-changing
event.”

Emily Howard, 2008 recipient
Jane Attenborough Dance in Education (JADE) Fellowship
Career development for dancers

£61,958 awarded in 2008-09 (including support costs)

Set up in 2005 for five years, the JADE Fellowship is awarded to a professional dancer coming to the end of his/her
career and wishing to transfer their skills to dance education and community work. The Fellowships commemorate
PHF’s former arts manager, Jane Attenborough, who died in the 2004 Asian Tsunami. The scheme is based on the
belief that professional dancers have valuable qualities and skills to bring to dance in education.

In May 2008, Siobhan Davies Dance was awarded the fourth JADE Fellowship for dancer Tammy Arjona. The
Fellowship is designed to give Tammy experience of delivering education and community dance work across a broad
range of ages, groups and contexts — as well as developing her project management skills.

During 2008-08, we were delighted that the first JADE Feliow ~ Simon Cooper - started a new full time post as
Rehearsal Director for Verve at the Northern School of Contemporary Dance in Leeds. The second Fellowship, to
Northern Ballet for Andy Barker, came to an end and Andy is currently developing his skills further through courses in
a range of movement-based practices, with a view to teaching. The third Fellow, René Pieters, has continued to
broaden his skills working at Tees Valley Dance and Northumbria University and embarked on this last year of his
Fellowship.

Over the course of the year, consultant Susanne Bums undertock an independent evaluation of the Fellowships and
her findings and recommendations informed the selection process that resulted in Tammy Arjona joining the scheme.
We have committed to continue ongoing evaluation of the programme until at least the end of the fifth Fellowship in
2011. We will develop plans to share our leaming over the course of 2009 so that the dance sector as a whole can
benefit from the information we are gathering.




st am thrilled to be the fourth recipient of the JADE fellowship. It is a new beginning for me and I'm really looking
forward to gaining new skilis and confidence in teaching within the creative learning area. It is a fantastic opportunity
to broaden my experiences of teaching dance and to exchange ideas with other organisations and dance teachers.
Learning how | can pass on the knowledge I've gained over the years as a dance artist is something I'm excited about
and | hope to grow enormously over the next two years.”

Tammy Arjona, 2008 JADE Fellow
Breakthrough Fund
Support for cultural entrepreneurs in the arts

£1,197,635 awarded in 2008-09 (including support costs)

A successful arts economy requires not only great artists, but also talented and visionary people who can enable
these artists to make great things happen. Paul Hamlyn Foundation launched the Breakthrough Fund, now inits
second year, to support exceptional cultural entrepreneurs with a pressing and persuasive vision, drive and a strong
track record of making things happen.

Funders are rarely willing to commit at the stage where a vision exists but is not yet clear in terms of deliverable
activities, resourcing and risk. Through the Breakthrough Fund, PHF commits funding earlier in the cycle, trusting that
grantees, as they progress, will identify and realise their plans and the outcomes of the Fund's support.

Since making our first five grants last year, we have been asked by recipients to give advice, to act as mentors or as
external consultants, and to be a sounding board — at times remaining in close contact and having monthly updates
and de-briefs.

As the Breakthrough Fund works through nominations only, respected individuals across art forms, practices and
regions help us to spot cultural entrepreneurs at critical points in their career, for whom a grant would make a
difference. In 2008/09, 14 nominators (all different from last year's) led to PHF receiving 37 proposals, from which the
following grants were made:

Natalie Abrahami and Carrie Cracknell / The Gate Theatre — £254,000

Tony Butler / Museum of East Anglian Life — £150,000

Tom Chivers, Sam Hawkins and Marie McPartlin / The London Word Festival — £141,000
Helen Cole / Inbetween Time Productions — £278,000

Claire Doherty / Situations — £300,000

The 10 grants that we have made so far over the two years of the Fund have covered elements of core costs
{including rent, salaries and contributions to overheads) and some artistic expenditure (from developing new
programmes to growing or consolidating existing work). Though centred on individuals, these grants were made to
the organisations with which they work.

In the course of the year ahead, we will set up an evaluation framework to measure the impact of the Breakthrough
Fund, which we aim to track over a timeframe that extends beyond the grants themselves. We will also embark on a
third round of nominations and applications in the course of 2009.




Open Grants
Grants Awarded in 2008-09
Sistema Scotland

Core support over two years to grow children’s orchestras in Raploch, on the outskirts of
Stirling

£234,000 awarded over two years

Big Noise Raploch aims to transform lives and empower a community through music, creating new life opportunities
for children and their families in a deprived area of Scotland.

Sistema Scotland has started breaking down the cycle of social deprivation which puts children at risk of becoming
involved in crime, drug abuse and anti-social behaviour by developing children's social skills, confidence, aspiration
and drive; supporting them across all areas of development; and recognising individual achievements. Although only
launched in the summer of 2008, Big Noise Raploch is the culmination of years of work to adapt the Venezuelan
model developed so successfully over 30 years by Maestro José Antonio Abreu and exemplified by the internationally
recognised Simon Bolivar Youth Orchestra.

Our grant represents about 80 per cent of core costs for the period spanning the 2009/10 and 2010/11 academic
years. It will enable Sistema Scotland to start its second year of activity on a more secure financial footing so that it
can continue to grow its already considerable achievements.

Different approach: Big Noise Rapioch is tipping western music education on its head in the way it approaches how
children learn to play their instruments, introducing a completely new value system. Rather than individual teaching,
practice and ambition, everything is communal. Children begin as part of an orchestra, with shared lessons and
practice; the culture is of mutual support, with the aim to be the best one can be, rather than the best. The goal is not
about music, but discipline, respect, achievement through work and teamwork, and always striving for excellence.

Sing London

Organisational development
£74,183 awarded over three years

Working in partnership with a wide variety of arts and community organisations, the Sing London festival aims to
provide new opportunities for collective singing, both professional and amateur. Those new to singing are particularly
encouraged to take part.

Our grant, made in the summer of 2008, is underpinning the rol-out of the festival into a UK-wide programme of
collective singing events called Sing the Nation. We are supporting Sing London's core activity and enabling the
development of new strands of work. Many elements of the programme are strongly linked to the opening of the 2012

Olympic Games. Sing London has developed strong relationships with key partners and started to develop a nationat
presence.

Core support: We have a track record of core support grants that back an organisation's vision and mission. In an
increasingly adverse economic climate, we believe it is vital for us to continue to provide this type of funding.

Ongoing Grants
People United

Core support to underpin the salary of the founder and director
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£30,000 awarded over eighteen months
People United uses the arts, sport and creative ideas to foster, celebrate and research kindness in all its forms.

Our financial support, soon after the organisation was created, underpinned the development of a three-year strategy,
the setting up of the business on a salid footing, and the creation of a website. This was followed by a series of trial
projects in schools in Kent and West Yorkshire supported by amongst others, Arts Council England. The work
undertaken in the pilot schools focused on staries celebrating good deeds and actions. Assessment by the University
of Kent and Canterbury Christchurch University found that it demonstrated significant and consistent changes in
pupils’ attitudes and how they relate to the wider community.

Strong methodology: People United acts as a practical laboratory to test and evaluate soclal programmes that are
catalysts for kindness, using arts and creativity as a tool. They are developing pragmatic and measurable approaches
to realising an ideal.

Unicorn Theatre
Underpinning the creation of an ensemble of actors for young audiences

£295,000 awarded over three years
Unicorn, based in a new building in Southwark, is one of the UK's flagship theatres for children.

Through our grant, Unicorn has become one of the few theatres in the country — and the only children’s theatre — to
have its own in-house ensemble. The six full-time actors have taken part in alf the Unicorn productions and played a
pivotal role in education and community work. It is through this participatory programme that the benefits of the
ensemble have been felt most immediately, creating more direct links between the main stages and education work.
Having the same group of actors in the building over a longer period of time has also challenged the boundaries
between management and creative teams.

Changing culture: Unicorn Theatre is developing a new operating model, partly to maximise the opportunities
offered by a new building and partly in response to external and financial pressures. The ensemble is ane of the main
tools used in the organisational development process they have undertaken.

Completed Grants
North Down’s Borough Council

Piloting outreach work in local estates and extending partnerships with local schools as
part of the Aspects Irish Literature Festival

£13,000 awarded over four months

North Down's Borough Council runs the Aspects Irish Literature Festival every September o celebrate Irish writing
through the presentation of emerging and established writers.

Our grant was used to develop an education programme, Young Aspects, through the expansion of outreach work in
schools and the faunch of a pilot study with communities from two local estates. The Wiiters in Estates programme
faced some difficuities because of low levels of participation from local residents. It was therefore agreed that our
grant would be redeployed to focus solely on the development of partnerships in schools and new work with further
education institutions.

This strand of work proved successful, exceeding its targets in terms of impact on participants. Because most of the
children living on the targeted estates are going to the schools involved in Young Aspects, the Council still aims to
reach families and friends in due time through these young participants.
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Flexibility: As a responsive funder, we welcome dialogue with grantees who may need to change their plans to
reflect what they have learnt from work having taken place, while remaining true to their original aims and objectives
for the grant.
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Education and Learning Programme

This programme has a strong focus on supporting innovation and aims to achieve significant impact, ideally ata
national level, across a range of education themes. Our work fosters the development and sharing of new practice,
experiences and learning between and within schools, local authorities and veluntary organisations.

This year has seen significant developments across the Education and Learning programme as a number of new
ideas for Special Initiatives have crystaliised and moved from research and scoping work into implementation phases.

The development of Special Initiatives in this programme has been inspired by the success of Musical Futures, which
we set up to encourage new ways of thinking about music making in schools. Over 1000 UK secondary schools are
now using the Musical Futures approach to build upon young people’s existing passion for music and engage them
with active music making in the classroom. An tnstitute of Education survey of these schaols highlighted, among
other successes, a 40 per cent increase in the numbers of students electing ta continue with their music making at
GCSE level. Teachers reported consistently on the positive and lasting changes to their approach to teaching and
learning in the classroom.

Building on this, we have developed, in partnership with other key agencies, a new programme to improve young
people’s experience of music learning as they progress through to secondary schaol. Transforming Transition will
represent a new approach for the Foundation, with an emphasis on garnering active support and contributions from
schools, music services, informal learning and voluntary sector organisations across the country, identifying the best
of existing practice and creating the tools and resources to enable others to replicate these. We were pleased to have
our leadership of this programme endorsed by our partners, who noted our “charm, tact and steel teeth!l”

Musical Futures was also the starting point for Learning Futures, a Special Initiative that aims to increase young
people's engagement with their learming through school, and to retain their commitment to learning beyond their
school years. During the year, we also issued a call for proposals for Learning Away, a Special Initiative that
promotes the value of residential learning experiences for schools.

In the higher education sector, we announced in July 2008 seven lead higher education institutes that will be working
with PHF and the Higher Education Funding Council for England over the next three years. Qur aim will be to
understand better the factors, practices and broader strategies that contribute to greater student success and higher
retention rates within higher education.

Our five Special Initiatives all share a broad methodology, key elements of which are becoming common to the
development and delivery of many of the Foundation's Special Initiatives. These include carefut horizon scanning and
scoping; an action-ariented, problem-solving and often emergent approach to testing out new ideas, in close
partnership with practitioners on the ground; and the building of a wider community of interested parties who may in
time adopt our innovative practices themselves. Many of our current initiatives have ambitious objectives and
ultimately seek to influence policy and practice in a nationally significant way. However, we are clear that not all future
developments need be on this scale.

Open grants review

During 2008/09 we awarded 35 grants under our Open Grants Scheme and have been pleased to see that the
geographical spread of applications from across the UK is gradually improving. With our Arts and Social Justice
counterparts we launched revised guidelines with overarching criteria focusing on innovaticn (finding better ways of
doing things, with an emphasis on radical, new and potentially high impact strategies), change (at individual
participant, organisational and sector levels) and user participation.

At the same time, within the Education and Learning Programme, we launched a new theme, alongside our long-
standing ‘Tackling Schoo! Exclusion and Truancy' and ‘Supplementary Education’ themes. The new theme focuses
on the development of young people's speaking and listening skills between the ages of 11 and 19 and places a
particular emphasis on supporting activities that develop these skills in realistic and ideally ‘real world' contexts, so
that young people are better equipped to communicate effectively in fhe world outside of and beyond schoal.
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Many of the grants that we have made under the Open Grants Scheme resonate closely with the approaches to
teaching and learning that we advocate through our Special Initiatives, particularly Learning Futures, Musical Futures
and Learning Away. Inevitably, the success of programmes designed to tackle school exclusion and truancy usually
hinge on the ability of the learning experiences offered to genuinely excite and motivate young people, rather than
relying on automatic compliance with a set of instructions or allocated tasks, or conventional transmissive styles of
learning from teacher to pupil.

The Protégé project, developed by Central Saint Martins at the University for the Arts in Landon is a great example of
using seff-directed learning to identify and demonstrate the maverick talents that many excluded young people have,
fo raise their own aspirations towards further education or enterprise and also to challenge the perceptions that
educators, policy makers and the wider public often hold about these young people and their abilities.

The Teens and Toddlers pregramme run by Children: Our Ultimate Investment and supported through a new grant
this year, which gives students hands-on experience of looking after toddlers in early years settings, has already
proved an effective model for re-engaging disaffected learners despite its primary focus on preventing teenage
pregnancy. Several of the new supplementary school grants awarded this year, including those to Esforal and Al-
Haqq, as well as grants under the Tackling School Exclusion and Truancy theme, such as those to Bath Festivals
and Kensington and Chelsea College, illustrate the very positive impact that new types of learning refationships can
achieve, with peers, family and community members other than teachers sharing responsibility for supporting young
peoptle’s learning.

We have commissioned a review of the impact and future potential of our Open Grants theme to tackle school
exclusion and truancy and are hopeful that the resuits of this will further develop our understanding about the
approaches and strategies that can most effectively engage lsarners and best equip them for the future. The findings
of this review, together with examination of the impact of our Supplementary Education grants and the ongoing
evaluation and research associated with our Special Initiatives will influence the future development of our work as
we aim to use our resources to best effect in the fields of education and learning.

Growth factors

The developments in the programme this year have brought with them the growth of the Education and Learning
Team, particularly through the appointment of new external associates who are leading or supporting the work of our
Special Initiatives. It has also brought a wider awareness, particularly among schools, of the role we aim to play in
fostering innovative practice to improve outcomes for learners across the education system.

We were pleased to have our leadership of [Transforming Transition] endorsed by our partners, who noted our
“charm, tact and steel teeth!”

Special initiatives

Student retention grants programme
Learning what works best to support and retain students in higher education

£482,723 in 2008/09 (including support costs)

The focus of this initiative is on learning about the most effective strategies that universities can employ to ensure
high continuation and completion rates within higher education, particutarly for students from more disadvantaged
backgrounds and from families or communities that do not have a tradition of higher education.

The primary purpose of our support is to generate robust, evidence-based analysis and evaluation, and to ensure
effective sector-wide dissemination to contribute to the development of good practice. Through engaging and
supporting universities in better understanding their practice around retention, and the interventions and approaches
that are most successful in ensuring high retention and completion rates, this initiative will uitimately improve the
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quality of retention work in Higher Education Institutions (HEIs), ensure more effective use of resources to support
student retention and help to further raise retention and completion rates,

Together with our partner, the Higher Education Funding Council for England, we particularly sought collaborative
proposals that enabled comparative studies between institutions and a shared approach to evaluation and
dissemination. From 63 initial applications, seven universities were selected to work with us, with an overall group of
19 HEIs participating as partners. The seven successful lead applicants are:

University of Leicester
Anglia Ruskin University
University of Sunderland
University of Reading
Aston University
Northumbria University
Nottingham Trent University

Each of these has begun an in-depth, three-year evaluation of their own retention practices and a number have
already presented their work at national conferences and seminars.

The work will be greatly strengthened by the overarching coordination and support role which a partnership between
the Higher Education Academy and Action on Access is fulfilling on our behalf, A number of mechanisms for sharing
learning, both between aurselves and our seven partners, and with the wider sector have been established, and the
support team will also play a key role in helping to synthesise the key learning from the initiative and to identify and
articulate insights of relevance to other institutions.

Learning Futures
Developing new teaching and learning practices in schools

£127,677 in 2008/09 (including support costs)

Learning Futures aims to encourage innovation in teaching and learning practice in secondary schools to better meet
the needs and aspirations of young people and teachers in the 21% century. The models developed under the
initiative should ensure that more young people engage actively and positively with their learning, both through their
school years and beyond.

For an initiative that is yet to move into its implementation phase (from September 2008}, Learning Futures has
attracted an impressive response. Together with our partner, the tnnovation Unit, we set out our thinking about the
key characteristics that we befieve ought te underpin 21st century teaching and leaming practices. We have built a
community of over 300 schools wishing to explore these further. From these, 54 submissions were received from
schools wishing to partner with us and form a core group of Learning Futures schools to pilot innovative pedagogical
practices. Fifteen schools were shortlisted who show a high level of change readiness, presented realistic yet radical
proposals and are willing to work collaboratively to create the tools and resources that will enable schools elsewhere
to replicate their successful practices.

Just a few of the exciting ideas to be tested over the coming year include:

¢ school students, home-aeducated students and adult learners working together to design and pursue their
own peer-assessed learning experiences
training parents to extend the range of leaders supporting learning in school
piloting language learning where students each select their own language to study, supported by a teacher
who becomes a facilitator of self-directed learning
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«  drop-in, independent learning centres on the school site staffed by sixth form students with subject
expertise

» arange of community-based, enterprise and problem-based learning projects taking place in real world
contexts

In all cases, our partner schools are seeking to balance more traditional teaching and leaming approaches with
methods that ensure students can see for themselves the relevance of learning. New activities are constructed with
the active involvement of young people themselves. Learning experiences and processes take place both in and out
of school contexts, and vary the leamer/teacher mix, recognising the value of a much wider range of roles than those
inherent in the traditional teacher-pupil relationship.

Learning Away
Achieving more through school residentials

£33,793 in 2008/09 (including support costs)

Learning Away is a new special initiative that aims to support schools in significantly enhancing young people’s
learning, achievement and well-being by using innovative residential experiences as an integral part of the
curriculum. The initiative wilf run for six years, during which we will work closely with a selected group of schools
across the UK to pilot innovative models and lean from exemplary practice in this area, in order to achieve significant
shifts in schools’ commitment to high-quality residential learning experiences.

The initiative was launched at the national Learning Outside the Classroom conference in October 2008. We received
71 initial submissions and have invited fuller proposals from 25 partnerships of schoaols, with a view to selecting, in
summer 2009, arcund a third of these as our action-research partners for the initiative.

Across the shortlisted proposals, we have seen some creative ideas that challenge common perceptions about the
learning outcomes, types of activities and locations of residentials. These include a strong emphasis on the co-design
and delivery, with students, of learning experiences; a number of cross-phase proposals with secondary school pupils
mentoring primary children; and some creative ways of overcoming the structural, organisational or funding issues
that commonly prevent schools from undertaking residentials. Many applicants are committed to providing a
progression of high-quality residentials for all students throughout their school lives.

A vast range of leaming experiences are proposed — ranging from environmental to vocational, adventurous to
spiritual, subject immersion to family learning, and community-building to student leadership — across a variety of
locations. With the enthusiasm shown so far, we are confident that our Learning Away partners will prove to be
effective advocates and exemplars to challenge and support others to leam from and build on their experiences over
the next few years.

“For some children a week’s residential is worth more than a term of school. We know we want it for our own children
— we need to make sure other people’s children experience it foo.”

Tim Brighouse, farmer London Schools Commissioner and PHF Programme Advisor
Musical Futures
Supporting innovation in school music education

£203,474 in 2008/09 (including support costs)

This year, Musical Futures has been marked by a growing sense of shared ownership of the initiative by schools and
teachers.
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In less than three years, the number of schools across the country implementing the approach has grown from
around 30 in the pilot phase to more than 1000 — a third of all the secondary schools in the country. Although we
have supported this by providing resources, training and networking opportunities, the scale of the take-up has
primarily been because teachers and practitioners have come to Musical Futures themselves, have explored its ideas
and resources, and have found innovative and unique ways of integrating it into their own music departments. It is
radical enough for them to feel they are making a significant change to their practice (and usually seeing major
improvements), yet it is accessible enough not to feel threatening, or that they must implement it in one particular
way.

Since our celebratory “In Your Hands' event, held at the Southbank Centre in June, our new network of 27 Champion
Schools has begun to realise our vision of a sustainable initiative that is owned and reinvigorated by those that use
the Musical Futures approach on a day-to-day basis. Evaluation of the free training courses that have been provided
by our Champion Schools throughout the year has shown that, so far, 87 per cent of delegates are now considering
implementing Musical Futures in their schools. The forthcoming launch of a second edition of the Musical Futures
Teachers' Resource Pack and an updated website, populated in large part by new resources developed by teachers,
will help to extend the programme’s reach even further over the coming year.

We are continuing to work with the Institute for Education as they conduct independent evaluation of the programme
and gather further evidence of the impact that Musical Futures is having across the education sector, within schools
and for the individual teachers and young people that participate.

“Musical Futures is regarded as one of the major advances in music-teaching pedagogy in this country since the turn
of the century”

Peter Stedman, Classroom Music magazine

Open grants

Grants awarded 2008/09

Amana - Improving educational support for BME young people in Bristol
Supplementary Education theme

£141,178 over three years

Amana was awarded a grant for an innovative and strategic programme that aims to improve the quality of
educational support and provision for Black and Minarity Ethnic (BME) young people, particularly those from the
Somali community. This will be achieved through increasing the number of trained educational practitioners from the
BME and Somali communities able to work in local schools — both mainstream and supplementary — and also in early
years settings.

Over a three-year period Amana will train 36 members of the community to become qualified teaching assistants and
90 people in childcare. Amana believes that the project will be replicable and has scope to be scaled up further.
Ultimately, this project could reduce the need for supplementary schools to deliver primary educational support in the
core subjects of Maths, Science and English, through providing more BME educational practitioners in the
mainstream classroom who are, for example, able to support students with English as an additional language.

Opportunity: This grant has the potential to release supplementary schools fram the delivery of core subjects and
allow them to develop more culturally enriching curricula andfor to provide additional learning opportunities and
qualifications to students that mainstream schools do not offer.
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| CAN - Secondary Talk
Speaking and Listening theme

£300,000 over 15 months

Our first grant under the new Speaking and Listening theme was awarded to | CAN to support the development
phase of an ambitious national initiative. Secondary Talk aims to transform secondary schools into places where the
speech, language and communication skills of all young people are actively supported by staff with the knowledge,
skills and confidence to do so effectively.

Secondary Talk aims to create systemic change through supporting schools in the development of evidence-based
practice, necessary staff skills, quality assurance and curriculum so that a whole-school approach to communication
skills development for all students is achieved. The initiative is intended to directly tackle the significant numbers of
young people that, even at secondary school, have limited communication skills.

New theme: Limited communication skills hamper relationships, behaviour and leaming, limiting potential within the
world of work. Our new grant theme aims to facilitate a sector-wide transformation in addressing these problems.

People and Work Unit — Glyncoch Community Bridges
Truancy and Exclusion theme

£92,263 over five years

The People and Work Unit has developed an innovative community programme to improve school attendance and
reduce exdusions and behaviour problems among children from Wales's poorest communities. The project will test
and disseminate a community response to chronic problems of poor attendance and behaviour among its young
people, tackling the cultural attitudes that impact on schooling, helping pupils build their capacity to thrive in learning,
and building their families’ capacity to support them.

Over a five-year period, the Unit will work with a cohort of 60 young people from Glyncoch, an impoverished ex-
mining community, following them from primary school through to age 16 and piloting a comprehensive model of
community-led support and activities, working closely with a wide-range of local services and agencies.

Innovative approach: The Unit's hypothesis for this work is that although there is much that schools could do to
improve young people’s experience of education, there are also cultural issues that only the community can address.

Ongoing grants

Restorative Solutions — Restorative Approaches in Schools (RAiS)

Truancy and Exclusion theme

£147,750

Since April 2007, Restorative Solutions has been developing and implementing its Restorative Approaches
programme in a number of Bristol schools. The approach is founded on principles of restorative justice and processes
that bring together those responsible for conflict situations with those harmed by the conflicts to establish what

happened, hold young people to account for their behaviour and reach agreement about what can be done to make
things better.
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Restorative Approaches was established as a demonstration project to understand the bestways of implementing the
approach in schools, to develop replicable models that could be scaled up nationally and to incorporate independent
evaluation. Eight Bristo! secondary schools are curently participating in the project, with others in the city soon to
introduce the approach.

Independent evaluation has highlighted the positive impact the project has had on the climate for learning in schools
and on attendance rates, and that restorative approaches are likely to have been significant in the reductions in fixed-
term exclusions recorded at the participating schools. Over the course of this grant significant progress has been
made nationally as well, with several local authorities adopting restorative approaches as part of their schools’
behaviour policies and the DCSF now promoting the approach.

Sectoral impact: The potential for scaling up this work has been realised through its adoption by other schools and
DCSF's support.

“Our core values of trust and respect are fully reflected within the methodology and practice associated with
Reslorative Approaches. The impact on student behaviour and their weil-being has been dramatic. Introducing RAIS
has supported our efforts in improving attendance and reducing fixed-term exclusions.”

Headteacher and Deputy Head at Brislington Enterprise College.
Newham Somali Homework Club — the Positively Motivated Project

Supplementary Education theme

£30,677

This small supplementary school in East London has developed the Positively Motivated Project to meet the needs of
their older students who felt that the existing homework club, which focused on maths, English, Arabic and Somali,
did not meet their changing needs, particularly in relation to post-16 choices and understanding the world of work and
further education.

The project is involving secondary aged students from the Somali community in selecting and researching topics,
conducting interviews and writing, editing and designing a quarterly newsletter which is printed and distributed within
the local community. Through this process, students have been learning about different careers, and locat issues
such as bullying, youth participation and the potential impact of the 2012 Olympic Games. Each newsletter edition is
publicly presented to members of the local community.

Although this grant was awarded under our Supplementary Education theme, there is a close fit to our more recent
‘Speaking and Listening' theme, which emphasises the value of young people developing these skills through
learning in ‘real-world’ contexts.

Youth empowerment: This grant meets a specific need identified by some of the young people participating in the
project.
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Social Justice Programme

This programme is concerned about social justice for young people living in the margins of society,
particularly those groups who are most disadvantaged and making critical transitions in their lives.

These young people include groups such as, asylum seekers, refugees and migrants facing multiple barriers to
integration, young offenders leaving prison, young people at risk of offending, those struggling with mental ill-health
victims of violence and abuse, and those with complex needs, including disability. For many, social injustice means
they are not regarded as equal citizens and struggle to access resources to meet basic needs. Often their views are
not fully taken into account in decision making that affects their lives, and public perceptions of them lead to stigma
and caricature. At this ime of economic recession, our concern is with those who are most vulnerable who suffer the
most, and our commitment is to support work that helps those who may have no-one to tum to for help —even when
that work is risky.

All of the organisations we support regard young people not simply as problems for society, or challenges with
complex needs, but as citizens with the talent, skills, ideas and energy to change their lives and improve the lives of
others around them. Often these organisations are seeking more effective ways to help young people identify the
range of assets they do have, and to capitalise upon them — and this is a significant challenge in a society that places
such great emphasis on educational attainment. The pay-off, if they get this right, is that the young people they work
with are far better placed to cope with an increasingly uncertain world than they would otherwise have been. We seek
to support and assist those who wish to innovate in this area,

We help to promote social justice in a number of ways. Through our Open Grants, we award grants across the UK,
mainly to voluntary organisations but also on occasion to statutory bodies. Our Open Grants scheme has developed
over the last 18 months, dividing into two themes. The first seeks to support activity to develop ‘progression
pathways’ for those young people who face most difficulties in making the transition to adulthood. The second seeks
to encourage stronger links and understanding between young people in communities that are divided and/or
separated.

We are seeking applications that are socially innovative — not with the objective of disregarding approaches that are
proven to work, but to encourage organisations to try to improve them, widen their application or apply them in
different contexts or hitherto neglected areas, perhaps with new partners. We also give priority to funding outside
London.

Listening to young people

One of the driving forces behind the formation of this programme was a concern that young people were being
unfairly represented by the mass media, and that those in positions of power, whilst ‘listening’, have been
subsequently unable or unwilling to change the way they worked in response to what they heard. . We strongly
believe that in many cases, young people are best placed to work with their peers to find solutions to their problems.
Therefore, we now expect applicants for funding through our Open Grants scheme to be able to show how young
people have helped shape, will deliver, and - if possible — will evaluate the impact of work proposed. We also ensure
that across our new initiatives, where appropriate, young people play an active role in their governance and
evaluation.

Our Special Initiatives may also have grant-making as part of their approach, but are often action-research based, or
pilots to develop new models of practice.

For example, with Right Here, our Special Initiative on mental health, we are concerned not only with helping young
people who experience mental ill-heaith, but with the practical challenge of ensuring that young people get support
earlier and in a way that suits them. This helps prevent them from needlessly entering a mental health system which
we know is seldom in their long-term interests.

20




Underpinning our initiatives is a recognition of the need for wider systemic and institutional change. However, this
process is complex and challenging, and we have had to make sure that we are in a position both to understand what
works well, and to acknowledge and learn where our approach has not worked so well.

Ongoing evaluation of Special Initiatives yields insights into how we can imprave what we do. For example, the
Reading and Libraries Challenge Fund sought to encourage change through a wide range of innovative projects in
libraries and prisons, supporting activities for young people, including refugee and asylum seekers and those in care.
The Fund led to a great deai of innovative practice and imaginative approaches, but our assumptions that these alone
would lead to longer term change were unfounded. Instead we learned lessons about how we might have done mare
to enable projects to have an impact on their institutions ~ by engaging policy- and decision-makers earlier, by
supporting grantees in the management and delivery of their work, and by helping them to explain the impact they
were having to others.

We have drawn heavily on this learning in designing Right Here, which seeks explicitly to develop new service
madels in mental health provision for young people, and uses a range of approaches to help achieve this, including
consultancy and evaluation support for grantees; ongeing engagement with national and lacal policy makers; support
for grantees to exchange ideas and good practice; and independent ongoing evaluation designed to help us adapt
and improve how we approach our objectives.

Supporting calls for change

We also engage with policy makers around the areas we work in, and we will consider support for strengthening new
or existing social movements ar campaigns. Along with The Diana, Princess of Wales Memorial Fund and the Esmée
Fairbaim Foundation we are providing grant support for ‘Citizens for Sanctuary’ — helping to embed in policy and
practice the recommendations of the Independent Asylum Commission.

Qur research into the experiences of young undocumented migrants, which we plan to publish during 2009/10, has
highlighted, in particular, the importance that these young people have reliable information about their rights, a need
also evident in our work with refugee community organisations over the years. We have also reviewed areas where
we have already been an active funder. Our review on youth justice looked the effectiveness of our grant funding in
prisons and young offenders institutions, and will help us to identify how we might target our support more effectively
in future.

From such reviews, and through informal reflection on our work, it is clear that foundations can add value by helping
to support organisations beyond funding. Therefore, we continue to develop ways of enabling grantees to access
opportunities for development, exchange and networking.

Paul Hamlyn was passionate about social justice. Where there is now growing consensus around the impact of
inequality and division in society, so too is there an urgent need for charitable foundations like ours to think more
flexibly about how we promote and enable sccial change. Increasingly, this programme will aim not only to help
young people overcome social injustice, but also to identify and challenge some of its underlying causes.

Special Initiatives

Right Here
Mental Health Initiative: building resilience among 16-25 year olds
£256,823 spent in 2008/09 (including support costs)

In partnership with the Mental Health Foundation, we have embarked on a five-year action research programme to
explore how young people’s mental health needs can be better addressed.

Mental health problems among children and young people have risen substantially in the UK in the past 50 years.
Young people experiencing mental ill-health face the challenges of misunderstanding and stigma, as well as the
practical difficulties of finding appropriate support.
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This initiative will help organisations that work with young people to work with others across various sectors to develop
new ways of enabling young people to access the type of support they need, when and where they need it. It will see
statutory and voluntary organisations working together differently, in order to promote mental health among young
people, prevent mental il-health among struggling individuals, and intervene earlier and more effectively with those
starting to move into iliness.

The initiative was open to a wide variety of organisations, on the basis that we are interested in finding new ways to
deliver mental health support to young people. Research from the Mental Heatth Foundation’s Listen Up! project (run
from 2002-07) showed that young people struggled to access the support they needed, and wanted support to be
available to them in more accessible places.

In late 2008 we received over 200 applications from organisations to be pilot sites for the initiative In February 2009
we announced a shortlist of 11, which were invited to make second stage applications. At the end of the process we
expect there to be up to four pilot sites from around the UK, with a final announcement due in July 2009.

Right Here will select a small group of pilot sites to work with, and assist them both financially and with consultancy
and evaluation support. The group will come together to learn and exchange goed practice, and their progress will be
shared with a wider community of practice and policy. The Tavistock Institute has been commissioned to carry outa
participative evaluation of the initiative, with young peaple playing a major part. Young people are also equal partners
in the governance of the overall initiative and will be involved in steering each pilot partnership.

The Special Initiative has its own website, www.righthere.org.uk

Young Undocumented Migrants
Research into the everyday lives of young undocumented migrants in the UK
£7,569 spent in 2008/09 (including support costs)

(n 2007 we commissioned City University's Department of Sociology, working in partnership with the Refugee Studies
Centre at Oxford University, to carry out qualitative research into the lives of young undocumented migrants in the
UK. The research was open-ended and exploratory, looking in detail at the experiences of young people from China,
Brazil, Zimbabwe, Ukraine and Kurds from Turkey. One special feature of the research was the range of practical
steps we asked the researchers to take to help build the skills and capacity of individuals and organisations involved
in the research - , through workshops, training and the provision of ICT equipment.

The emphasis on capturing fife stories in the words of young people themselves reflects our concern to understand
the predicaments many are in, and to begin the process of finding practical ways to enable them to regain some
control aver their lives. We will do this with others who are also concerned to help the most vulnerable among these
groups, and the publication of the research later in 2009 will be the first step in this process.

Not surprisingly, many young people interviewed were living in precarious situations, open to exploitation and harm,
But equally compelling in their staries are the skills, energy and enterprise that they bring to our communities. Seen in
this way, these young undocumented migrants are no different from many of the other young people we seek to
assist — potential assets to their communities, but struggling to realise their potential.

“Being undocumented in this country means that you don't exist’
Rojhan, 27

" *I think all people came here in search of a better life. And, | belong to those same people, young people who came
here not just for a better life but to find out about another country, meet different people, to develop”
Victoria, 24
Reading and Libraries Challenge Fund

£25,032 spent in 2008/09 (including support costs)
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The Reading and Libraries Challenge Fund was one of the Foundation's earliest Special Initiatives, and is now closed
to new applications. Launched in 2003, it comprised three funding streams:

« Right to Read for looked-after children and young peaple in public care
« Free with Words for prisoners and young offenders
« Libraries Connect for neglected communities such as refugees and asylum seekers.

The Fund amounted to arguably the largest single investment by a charitable foundation in the work of public libraries
since the days of Andrew Carnegie, and was unusual in providing some funding directly to public libraries (as well as
prisons}. It aimed te encourage libraries and other institutions to improve access to books and reading among young

people and others experiencing disadvantage, including refugees and asylum seekers and care leavers.

Perhaps more ambitious was the aspiration that the work supported by the Fund would lead to lasting change — not
only in terms of access to books and reading, but in the culture and ways of working of public libraries and other
institutions, such as prisons and care services.

The Fund was also an example of proactive grant-making. Applicants made initial applications to one of the three
streams, and then staff at the Foundation provided support and feedback as they developed their application further.
Once funding was agreed, grantees could access a range of resources to support and enhance their work. These
resources included one-to-one contact with Paul Hamlyn Foundation staff, workshops, conferences, web-based
resources and networking between projects.

The Fund was evaluated from the start and the findings from these evaluations, along with policy and practice
challenges for the future, will be published in the Fund’s Final report

*You have to ask their opinions and be prepared to be told that, what you thought was a ‘great idea’ might not be
viewed the same by them”
Librarian, Dorset

Refugee and Asylum Seeker Fund
Support for the integration of young asylum seekers
£26,742 spent in 2008/09 (including support costs)

The fund has a special focus on the integration of 11-18 year old asylum seekers and refugees, including those who
are unaccompanied, and also aims to develop the capacity of refugee community organisations (RCOs), particularly
those from outside London.

£3.3 million has been awarded to 9 organisations across the UK: 28 were RCOs and the remainder other
organisations working in partnership with RCOs. The fund is now closed to applications.

Ongoing evaluation was a central element, designed to be participatory and ensure that grantees were able to learn
from successes and failures as their work progressed. We also supported grantees through workshops and events
for training and information exchange.

Our evaluators spent a great dea! of time talking with project managers and young people and their report will be
published later in 2009. The initial findings show that, among other things, the value and challenge of partnership
working, and the benefits to RCOs of exposure to new ways or working.

Young people were involved in the planning and delivery of nearly all projects, but to different degrees. Organisations
we supported were committed to youth involvement in principle, but often struggled to implement this effectively. This
is an area we are addressing though our Open Grants scheme, which reguires organisations to improve the
effectiveness of their youth engagement.
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Open Grants
Grants awarded in 2008/09

SkyWay
Digital Pioneers Hub for marginalised BME young people in Hackney
£200,000 over three years

Digital Pioneers recognises and builds upon the hidden skills and talents of Hackney's most disengaged young
people. Through outreach and drop-in, young people access taster sessions in digital media - music-making, design
and production — and develop skills, confidence and experience, becoming trainers and mentors of other participants.

The teenagers SkyWay works with have struggled to take part in mainstream training, employment, education
and career structures. Often, previous failure and negative feedback have tainted any likelihood of engagement
in the future. SkyWay's experience has shown that they are often highly entrepreneurial, creative and
independent. If given training, support and direction, coupled with flexibility, freedom to experiment and
opportunities for hands-on learning, these young people aspire to do their own thing.

Empowerment: Participants have responded well to SkyWay's approach, which allows young people to get support
and direction when they need it, and even to pursue their interests in establishing their own businesses.

Citizen Organising Foundation
Citizens for Sanctuary campaign
£75,000 over three years

In 2006, South London CITIZENS asked 12 commissioners to conduct a nationwide review of the UK’s asylum
system. The Independent Asylum Commission spent two years gathering testimony from asylum seekers and the
public, taking evidence from experts, and engaging in dialogue with the authorities. It produced over 180
recommendations to safeguard people who seek sanctuary here and restore public confidence in the UK's role as a
place of sanctuary for those fleeing persecution.

Citizens for Sanctuary aims to find ways of making those recommendations a reality. We are funding the campaign in
partnership with The Diana, Princess of Wales Memorial Fund and Esmée Fairbairn Foundation.

Supporting change: Our support for this campaign reflects a desire to drive change at a policy-making level.

Kinetic Levenmouth YMCA
Street:Live
£150,000 over three years

Based in Fife, Scotland, Kinetic began as a youth theatre and evolved into working with young people to tackle anti-
social behaviour and exclusion from education and employment. The StreetLive programme aftracts large numbers
of young people to a range of fortnightly sporting and artistic events. Many go on to engage in other opportunities
Kinetic can provide through various social enterprises.

Kinetic's work is delivered by a young team, most of whom have risen up through its volunteering programmes. The
organisation has won plaudits locally and nationally — not least for the dramatic fall in anti-social behaviour in the
areas where it operates.

Youth-led youth work: Kinetic believes that the process of genuinely engaging with young people means
encouraging each individual to identify their own strengths and weaknesses, helping them build meaningful and
productive relationships with others, and encouraging them to lake on leadership and volunteering roles.
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Urbis Learning
Extension of the Reclaim project in Manchester
£49,800 over two years

Reclaim is a six-month programme for vulnerable 12-14 year olds living in areas associated with crime,
unemployment and social instability. Many are disaffected from learning and their communities are sccially and
geographically isolated.

The programme involves intensive mentoring and events, including working with local statutory bodies and creative
and sports providers. Self-development, discipline and anger-management courses form part of the syllabus, along
with teamwork and respect for legitimate authority. Participants can volunteer in their communities and receive
mentoring from local professionals. Reclaim and its young participants have developed a reputation for ground-
breaking work, and won numerous awards including a Philip Lawrence Award in 2008 for outstanding achievement in
good citizenship.

Negative stereotyping: Despite the project’s successes, participants have sometimes struggled to keep media
interest focused on the positive work that they do. Last year they produced an open letter explaining their frustration
at the approach of the media, which has too often concentrated on youth crime, rather than stories of young black
men engaged positively in their area.

"Since the project started, we have been approached by newspapers, magazines and TV companies, most of who
want fo talk to us about guns and knives and gangs. We keep lrying to expfain that we are nol involved in gangs and
crime; we're black boys daing positive things in this area — and then journalists go away, as they tell us that's not the
story people are interested in ... The project has changed our lives in so many ways. We now consider curselves
reliable, respectable, articulate and creative young black men. Aduls constantly criticise teenagers for being
irresponsible, but the way the media tries to represent our area as if everyone was a drugs runner or gangster is
totally imesponsible and morally wrong.”

Extract from an open letter from 14-year-old participants in the Reclaim project
Ongoing grant

Music and Change
Youth engagement in North London
£75,000 over two years

Music and Change (MAC) is an organisation which, through music, seeks to promote social inclusion and positive
mental heatth, give marginalised young people a voice and support community integration.

The small staff, complemented by volunteers and local young people, work on a housing estate in North London, and
atiract young people — many of whom are involved in gangs and crime — to weekly music sessicns. Participants learn
skills around DJ-ing, music-making, and producing lyrics. Some have begun developing and leading activities for
younger children, known as mini-MAC.

Measuring success: MAC has energised the estate, bringing together a diverse mix of young people, helping them
develop new skills and friendships, and offering them support with issues in their lives. The success of the approach
is being measured in an ongoing evaluation, involving psychologists from University College London. It is hoped that
the model may be scaled up and adopted eisewhere.
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India Programme

This programme supports social development in India through funding to non-governmental organisations.
In India we are concerned with seeking to empower vulnerable groups to develop, particularly women and
children.

The India Programme has expanded significantly over the past few years, and we maintained relationships with 35
different organisations across India in the course of 2008/09 through support to 38 different projects. The projects
supported were larger than previous years, with half of them obtaining grants of more than £40,000 and five obtaining
mare than £100,000.

The supported projects were also spread across the country, with 24 of them based in rural areas. We have
traditicnally had less focus on southern India, which is better developed, and this has continued in 2008/09 with only
one major project, the Independent Commission for People’s Rights and Development (ICPRD) functionat in three
districts of Karnataka.

Several new relationships have been begun in rural Maharashtra, including Social Action for Association and
Development {SAAD) in Parbhani and Shashwat Trust and Shishuadhar in Pune. The project with Sathi provides a
PHF-supported presence in several towns in eastern Uttar Pradesh. The remote North East continues to be
represented for PHF by The Ant. A shift in focus from the main metropofitan cities to supporting basic services in
smaller towns has also begun.

Varied sectors

Our policy of supporting work as per the skills, inclinations and requirements of local NGO partners has given us
considerable sectoral variety. Our traditional focus on health, education and disability continues, and there have been
several new projects relating to children (Shishuadhar), governance (SWATI), integrated development (Arthik
Anusandhan Kendra) and women (ICPRD and SAAD). Some of the supported projects are completely new wark,
some are continuations at a different scale, and others enable the replication of a modet in a different area.

We have also found that we support oppasing ideoclogical spectrums. For example, within Microfinance we support
Samaj Pragati Sahayog's bank-linkage model alongside Action for Social Advancement's (ASA) microfinance
institution model. This is similar to our support for sireet children, where with Sathi we support returning them home at
the earliest opportunity and with Salaam Baalak Trust and Chetna we support rehabilitating them in Deihi.

Measuring outcomes and governance

There has been considerable emphasis on project appraisal and monitoring in 2008/08, especially given that our
financial commitments to projects have increased. We now focus as much on ensuring that our NGQ partners are
adequately governed as we do on project monitoring, and we have finalised a set of minimum standards that we
expect all NGO partners to adhere to. We are happy to note that most of our NGO partners have internal governance
standards that are of far greater rigour.

We began a system of longer term (six- to seven-year) relationships in 2003. This year saw the first of such
relationships {Salaam Baalak Trust and ASA) draw to a close. We need to look to cantinue to keep such NGO
partners within the PHF famity {without funding) as the relationships have been intense and we have leamnt
significantly. More such relationships (Seva Mandir and Cbintan) will draw to a close in the coming year.

This coming year (2009/10) is an election year in India, and we will need to gauge the outcomes for shifts in the
state’s policies towards the poor. Other challenges for the year include setting up a permanent presence in India, for
which we have applied for the necessary permissions, and developing an effective programme of support in the
poorest eastern parts of the country.
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Case studies
SWATI - Society for Women’s Action and Training Initiatives
Promoting the Right to Information

Rs 1,519,060 (£20,083)

The Indian Parliament passed the Right to Information (RTI) Act in 2005 to promote transparency in public life.
However, political apathy, lack of awareness and bureaucratic resistance have created significant barriers to its
effective implementation.

SWATI began an initiative to create awareness of the RTI in Surendranagar district of Gujarat in 20086. Its work
training RTI volunteers, setting up help lines and help desks, and creating a forum of NGOs promoting the use of RTI,
enabled the RTI movement to spread across the district.

Support from PHF looks to enable SWATI to consolidate by following up on applications that have received an
unsatisfactory response from the authorities, by enabling women and marginalised communities to use the RTI, and
by focusing the RTI on public causes such as the Employment Guarantee Scheme, the Public Distribution System
and the state health services. The support will also enable SWATI to replicate its model in two more districts in
Gujarat — Mehsana and Patan.

Empowering poor communities: Even a well-intentioned government scheme can have many gaps that form
barriers to access by poor communities. A small and focused NGO intervention can enable much larger schemes {o
be beneficial to the poor.

Child Survival India
Health Programme in Savda Ghevra

Rs. 579,400 (£7,189)

This project is part of an initiative, Growth for All, which looks to apply management skills to development
interventions and to bring together local governments, the corporate sector, donor agencies and NGOs to address
problems faced by poor communities.

Some years age, to make land available for the Commonwealth Games (scheduled for 2010), the Delhi Government
resettled slum communities on a remote plot of land in North West Delhi. Basic social development services were
slow to follow, leading to problems of access to health, education and livelihoods for the 2,500 families here.

Our grant supports part of a larger programme to provide basic health services to the resettled community. Child
Survival India runs an emergency service, conducts health camps, and sets up health groups that link the community
to the government's health services.

Collaboration: This project has illustrated the importance of collaboration. The PHF-supported heaith project is part of
a much larger initiative that involves local govemment, NGOs and other donors and its success is partly determined
by work done by others who are not answerable to PHF in any way.
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Sathi
Re-Integrating Runaway Children on Railway Platforms

Rs. 3,750,000 (£49,419)

Sathi has worked with runaway children since 1997. It set up operations in the poorer North Indian states, from where
most runaway children in the large cities originate, in 2005. The Foundation’s support began in 2007 for operations in
Kanpur Railway Station, and has gradually extended to railway stations in Patna, Moghalsarai, Lucknow and
Gorakhpurl.

Sathi teams identify runaway children and then house them in temporary shelters where they are counselled while
contact is established with their homes. So far, nearly 1300 children have been returned home, of which 90 per cent
stay there. If children have been away for more than six months or are addicted to drugs, they are repatriated after a
month-long camp that enables re-integration into society.

Controversy: Mainstream discourse on runaway children is not in favour of immediate repatriation. Sathi's
experience is that most children leave home for trivial reasons and can be easlly repatriated. its data may be able to
influence opinion.

“As with all slum resettlement colonies in the capital, problems are aplenty - no running waler, drains that lead
nowhere and are nof connecled fo most houses, a very long cornmute if they want to go to their old places of work, a
government dispensary that opens for just three hours a day, a govemment primary school under tin roofs that get
burning hot in summer... As Srikant Sastri of Growth For All took a group of visitors from the Salzburg Global Seminar
and the 21st Century Trust around the colony, it was apparent that the NGOs had already instilled in many residents
the hope of a better future.”

Joydeep Gupta, a journalist associated with the 21* Century Trust and the Salzburg Seminar, following a visit to
Savda Ghevra.
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Other Grants

The Foundation sometimes makes other awards that do not fit within the programme aims, although they normally
relate to our areas of interest. These awards are not made in response to applications. This year we made three
cther awards.

Disasters Emergency Committee
Relief and rehabilitation work in Burma

£100,000

Cyclone Nargis struck Burma (Myanmar) in May 2008. Estimates of the death toll vary but official figures now place
the total confirmed dead at over 77,000, with a further 55,000 people missing. The disaster created 150,000
disptaced persons, as homes were lost to storm damage and fleoding. The United Nations described as ‘severely
affected’ an area with a population of 1.4 million. In the weeks that followed, disease and famine threatened as efforts
were hampered by non-cooperation from the military government.

The Foundation contributed to the Disasters Emergency Committee, an umbrella organisation that fundraises and
coordinates the activities of a group of charities with expertise in providing humanitarian aid. Its work in Burma
addressed the immediate needs of survivors, in particular those that are vulnerable, and sought to help them
reconstruct their lives ‘in safer more resilient communities that are better able to withstand future disasters’ (DEC
Burma Vision Statement).

The Helen Hamlyn Trust
Support for the Helen Hamlyn Trust 2008/09
£2,000,000

The principal focus of the Trust is on the initfation of medium- and long-term projects, funded by way of grants, sclely
or with partners, linked to the shared interests of Lady Hamlyn and her late husband, Paul Hamlyn.

The current strategy for grant-making is concentrated on the following areas of activity: Medical, the Arts and Culture,
Education and Welfare, Heritage and Conservation in India, International Humanitarian Affairs and Healthy Ageing.
Within these areas of activity the Trust also supports a number of projects with a design focus which are undertaken
by the Helen Hamlyn Centre at the Royal College of Art, London.

The Trust's core aim is to initiate and support innovative medium- to long-term projects, which will effect lasting
change and improve quality of life.

Jane Hamlyn

Chair
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List of grants awarded in 2008/09
Arts Programme
Open Grants
Ta develop Faster than Sound inta the LUK's first dedicated programme for mixing classical and electronic music, centred
Aldeburgh Music around A s new 'musical campus', E£240.000
Ta support significant organisational change in the grovislon of aducation and outreach activities for people with learning
JAnjall Dance Company dizabilities, including the of a learning disabled dance artist in the core team. £36,200
A multi-disciplinary arts project enabling Antrim Borough to work with rursily [solated or house-bound partidpants
Antrim Borough Council throug| or| | parinership with the moblle brary service. £27,100
A CONUALUDIAN 1a the tove costs of mounting the Ragship public free evert for Lierpoo! Capital 6f Cultyre In September
2008 - an ambitlous show toped with the engineering genlus behind Roval de Luxe's glaats, Frangols Defaroziére, and
Artichoke Trust hirg commpany Ly Machine to be played out againit the landimarks of the dty. £50,000
To support the g1 of an evaluatl to coflate best praclice examplesin terms of measuring the
Association of British Orchestras impact of work on participants and ities and devetop guik d for a8, £8,000
A three-yesr programme of workshops and training for vithi islated ities in Narth
B arts Staffordshire, am ing these 'Barefoot Doctors' to deliver arts projects in their local i £160,000
As part of 4 5chools tour of new works, the company wifl undertake new initiathves for young people; formallse the
Youth Dance Company management structure of the arganisation and develop the skills of company members. ETQT2
Using & 1995 production of As You Like It, Cheek by Jowl will axplore ways in which the campany might make ity archive
Charek by Jowl Theatra Comvpany accssibie. 1,000
A three-year srilst resldency and prog that witl result In lssue-based soclally-engaged cantemporary
Deveron Arts arts projects in the rural ity of Huntly, Aberd ire. £34,200
The Artistic Direcior post will drive rd at oy Including: & ¢ that disabled musicians have high
artistle asplrations and can attain musical exceltence; chaflenging narrow views of what disabled musicians can achievs;
JOrake Music Project |and promoting disabled srtists” work to.a national sudience, £30,000]
A participation and research project, bringing together arthits, chikdren under fourteen, people over 70 and gerontologists,
Fevered K tha theme of ageing. £7,000
To expand the delivery of Firefly's youth theatre proces within informal sattings to new areas across Scotland and to apgly
Firafty Aty Thise procesies to informal education seltings to support the Scottish Currlculum for Exceilence. £76,000
Tocreate s for trining and p devel, In the y dance sector, for
Foundation for C ity Dance the benafit of practitianers, emplayers and participants in community dance. £74,555|
FutureEverything Is a research-active, crealive studio that experiments with art, music and emerging technologies. The
grant will support their flagship event, the annual Fi Festhval in Manch  which biurs b daries batwaen art
FutureEverything CIC practica, soclal innovation and technological experimentation, £60,000/
Glyrdebourne Productions Umited Seed funding towards the development of Glyndebourne’s Creativa and Media Diploma Pilet, £20,000
of hand ‘oppertunities emphaslsing BME/disabitity for artists and ¢
Half Moon Young People’s Theatre |m!d at changing the ecology of the Theatre for Young People sector. £98,549
Bullding on a pilot project 1o recruit and train a media team, eitablishing » key part of Heart n Soul's crestive development
Heart 'n Seul programma for young people with learning difficutties. £46,000/
To underpin a serles of two maker-led exhibitions and events; enabling makers 1o develop innovative and #ffective ways of
IC: Innavative Craft/Dovecol Studies comruniating their practice more directly to sudiencer 50,000
Support for the extension of a programme of collaborative art scthvitiss snd svents on the Rose Hill housing estate In
Modern Art Oxford Oxtard. E£150,000
Care suppert to underpin the strateglc development of the maniudnn through three distinct, though interlinked,
Mors Music in Morecambe elements: Y participation; ecucation and creative p £75,000
A naw progeamime of music participation Initletives for young people in Derry - in and cutside of school, adapting the
Music 55-7 Musical Futures princlples to loca) needs and fitting within an exlating programma of events. £53,542
To support the developrient of the Saturday Club [h #eit Landon, & high-quality, mixed art-form, sitistic programme which
Mewham Sixth Form College (NewVic) develops and presents emerging artists alongside established artists. £43,000
To wppaort a community music project in and around Dereham, Norfolk linking sports and the arts, culminating a fingh
Morfolk Muskc Works petformance in s swimming pool at the Leisure Centre. £9,000
To develop » pilot propect with deaf children, which will ransform the way Polka puts children at the heart of its creathoe
Poltka Children’s Theatre itd processer E20,000
To support 'Dear Body’, » production which will inchudle an amateur cast of dancers %! to chalk
Protein Dance tha traditional notlon of prefessional dance ANcE dnd INcrease acoess to contem; dance, £70,000
Buliding on thres pllot projects, RiO will éstabllsh & network of young promaters across Cornwall, systematlcally increasing
RiQ (Cutthrate] tha number of participating young pecple over threa years. £56624
To build capacity of this working artists' studio based In 3 primary school In Bristol, 1o cater for 3 wiOe range of 23@ groups;
Eo act a1 4 resource for the local community and to pravide an exemplar model of youth-led artistic and educational
Room 13 Harective Peactice. £37,560
Supporting an ambitlous national pilot to change the way teachers and sitlsts tesch Shakespeare in school; building an the
Royal Shak Company 'Stand Up for Shakespeare Manifesto.' £180,000
Support to underpin the development and rolling out of the Sing London festival into 3 national programme of collective
$rng London Limited singing events, throughout London and England, called ‘Sing the Natlon'. 7411
To support an artist focused model of innovative dance delbvery in primary schools, insplred by Slobhan Davies'
slobhan Daviey Dance chor thodolegy and ent to artistic coltaboration. £2A721
Conwppoﬂwnmnmwuwdﬁldrm'lordmu,lnlwmneamusmmuuﬁwumbmm,
Sisterma Scotland aipiration, seil-respect, discipine, teamwork and prids smong childien, sdults, famities and the wider Raploch community. E234,000/
Tn the wake mmﬂzwwmwmmuaw fﬂ’nqﬂm:ﬁsmummllunhh
Sound Sense to test 1 new i % model as a profy dathon and devel agency for
Sound Sense ‘community muslc and musidans. £33,000
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Synergy Theatre Project

Funding towards Synecgy's new writing progr to develop perl and il to raise
awareness sbaut isvues surrounding criminal justice.

To buikd infrastructure of earty years arts gractice in Somarsat by placing creative arts practitioners within Children's
Take Art Limited Centre teams, in tandem with county arts organisations. 50,000
A serles of Initiatives to support the artlsts taking part in the 2008 Thte-i-Téte summer festival at Riversida Studloy,
Téte-a-Tite Productions Ltd enabling them to share feedback and attend sach other's performances and events, £s,tml
A threm-year partnership pragramma with football clubs to enable young people to attend residential coursesin Arvon
The Arvon b writing centres. E71,615
A bwo-year programme of ytelling perf: by and ing artistsin the studio at Soho Theatre,
The London Centra for International Storyteling |accompanied by mentoting to support tha professional development of these artists. £39,760
To enable an i tive th year programimea of p i Yy crafy, In
The Making jon with Oxford Brookes University, for traines and establithed art and design teachers. 90008
A ity studyinto the and benefits of making the Poetry Archive's recordings of poats” resding thelr work
The Poetry Archive avaitable as digital downloads. £10,000/
Thiee strands of work: Groundward and partnership d Local ity hip pack #nd poatry
The Poetry Society provision for trainee teachers over theew te four years. £162 0008
Schoels ion and -} In the run-up to the opening of the newly restored/recpened Topolskl
Topolskl Memair Ltd Memuir of the Century Centre on London's . £25,000
To Create a Testival celebrating non-professional singing by lesblan, gay, bisexual and transgender (LGBT) peoﬁl from
across Europe and provide 3 template for how the amateur arts sector can work with professionat organisations to deliver
Various Veices London 2009 accessible works of high artistic quatity. £32,500
Total - Arts Open Grants . £2,730,932
Special Initiatives
Awards for Artists
2008 Awards for Composers £135,000
T008 Awards for Visual Artlsts £225 600,
Suppart costs £64 410
£424,410
|Breakthrough Fund
Gate Theatre £254,000
|inbetween Time Productions £273.000|
London Word Festhal £141 0008
[Museumn of East Angtlan Life £150,000
Oh Yeah Muslc Centra E44,450
|Situations. £300,000
pport costs £30,185|
£1.137,635
|Hane Attenborough Dance in Education
Fetlowships
|Siobhan Davies Dance: ES0000F
Support costs £11.958
£61,958
Total - Arts Programme £4,414,935
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Education Programme
QOpen Grants
Maze will pioneer a new casework advocacy service for yaung pecple in secondary schools at risk of truancy or excluslon
Advocacy in $omerset to belp them get their fives back gn track. £149,883
To improve links with mainstream schools and develop learning initiatives to provide a mors effective service to
African Future Development African childran and young pecple. £34,337
To raise the i and achi; of Yocal children aged 5 to 14 years from ail ethnic backgrounds.
Al-Hagq Supplementary School through Y th E32,874
Amana aims to increase the number of trained educational practioners from the Somali {and other BME) communitias, to
encourage women to volunteer at supplementary schools and train as childcare workers and ta deliver 3 comprehensive
Amana Education Trust ackage of learning and support for parents. F141,178
Aqoon Is seeking funding for a year long project to provide per ised [earning and academic support outside school
Agoon Community & Education Services thours for targeted underachieving Somall pupils in Key Stages 3 and 4. £45,000!
The Write Team model of year-long creative writing workshops will be further developed to smbed, across several schools,
approaches that can succeed in re-engaging pupils. £149,744
‘Complementary Saturday classes and parents' workshops to raise the learning potentlal of ethnic minority primary aged
edlingual Learning and Teaching Assaclation chitdren in tord £22,630,
| Black Country Holistic Approach A Multi Media Arts altemative education facility for disaffected young people a1 risk of school exciusion. €43,975
| Brook Street Chifdcare Funding for teacher and assistant to scale-up a successful pilot of a Nurture Group at Brook Street Primary School. £80,000
Training deliverers within Traveller centres to pilot and manitor tha use of Catch Up Literacy and Catch Up Numeracy
Catch Up which ace both evidence based interventions, £26,400
Strategic development work to suppart the national expansion of Teens and Toddlers’, 4 teenage pregnancy prevention
Children: Qur Ultlmate Investment {UK} Iﬂ thatis alsa very successful in re-engaging young people with learning. £102,250
A plan ta tackle trusncy and school exclusion by boosting young people's confldence, self-awareness and sense of
Community Service Volunteers responsibility through a programme of leadership training. £33,350
An initlative to develop goad practice and reduce fixed term excluslons in a duster of six primary schools by emplaying
CPR Success Zone i tehaviour support staft who will work with vutnerable pupils. £93,514
Esforal is proposing to develop and run a thres year project of intergenerational fearning which would address
underachisvement by children in the Latin American community in London, through developing
ESFORAL parental/carer/grandparental awareness of how ta support children's learning. £14,440
An Education Development Worker to work with foster carers, schools and children in addressing the causes of educaticnal
Fostering Network underachisvement, lsm and axclusi £45,000/
To provide supplementary schools to raise the ienal attainment of bers of the Somali ¢ ity Ibing in the
[Help Somalta Foundation London Borough of Brent, £44,347
Employment of a Schools Liaisen Project Coordi . to open the ch: ls of. between Somali refugee
tornafrik ntegration Projects ktd familles and 30 local schools in the Londoen Borough of 3 £45,100
An ambitious programme which aims to transform secandary schools into places where the speech, Fanguage and
communication skiils of all young people are actively supported by staff with the knowledge, skil's and confidence to do so
effectively. The programme aims to impact pasitively on young people's achievement, incfusion, behaviour and
employability, Qur grant would fund the development phise of this initlative, prior to a pitot delivery phase and then
| CAN national roll out, £300,000
A programme of peer mentoring at Kensington and Chelsea College 10 improve the achlevement and retention rates for
young people aged 16 to 25 years who are ex atriskof. g, disady d, disaffected or natin
Kensington & Chelsea College employment, ducation or tralning. £66,762
Kidscape is proposing 1o fun a year long project teaching assertiveness to children who are truanting because of bullying at
scheol, in one or more of the four areas of the UK where bullying is currently rife, according to Kidscapa data
|xidscape Campaign For Children's Safety Hertiordshire, Cheshira, Wales and £ssex). £40,000
A 15 month project ta research and put together a coh menu of wetl [ that can be used by
Landon School of Economics secondary schools ta improve delivery of the recommended programme of study for "personal wellbeing', ETS,C(!J'
Avyear-tong ian preg; I in four UK in ¢tose partnership with schools, that sims to
‘Mobex Netwark Limited turn 'cycles of failure into cycles of success', £164, 700
A project to cater for young people and families with the sim of increasing school attendance and improving family
©On Track Projects relationships throughsut Rhondda Cynon Taf, Sauth Wates. £56,2008
Devetopment of a comprehensive model of community-led support, tackling cultural attitudes that Impact on schooling to
hefp puplls in ona of Wates' poorest communities build their capacity to theive in learning and their families' ability to
People and Work Unit | support them. £92,263
Famiby counselling in schools to help both school and family get the child back on track and erahle the chitd ta continue
Retate South Deven their k £18,000
Romsey Mill will extend their innovative Transitions Programma within Cambridgeshire to improve attendance in
Romsey Mill Trust secondary schools and share their practice with schools countywide. £82,809
Shpresa will extend their suppiementary school, develop training programmes for mainstream teachers and parents and
Shpresa Programme sharg their exemplary practice with others, inctuding the Somali tommuhity. £100,934
Educational Suppest Project to work with young carersin education whose caring at home fead ta
South Warwickshirs Carers Support Service educational underachievement, trusncy and exdusion. £39,000
Capacity building work, incuding the development of a business plan and a fundraising strategy and working towards
Talk Together London CIC eality standards, to enable reslisatlon of Talk Together Londen's smbitlous expansion plans. £10,000/
The FEACH Project hetps school-aged girls through working dosely with both the girl and her parents in order to help the
The Baytree Centre girl to improve her academic attainment, raise her aspirations, snd (mature a4 ¥ person. £89,838
This programma aims to build and support the delivery of & new cultural curriculum across Key Stages 1-4 for three
minority ethnic groups - African, African-Caribbesn and Turkish/Kurdish. The currleutum will be develtoped and piloted by
seven supplementary schools in Hackney. R dsch of work will then be shared with other supplementary
The Learning Trust schools, maihstream schools and other bocal authenities, £103,276
The theatre will deliver a TIE project In English and Cantonee 10 students, teachers and parents to 16 Chinese
Suppleinentary Schools in London and sumounding srea. £6,260]
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A leadershi x for young people sged 14-19, ot rish of excluzion, that will invohve these young
University of the First Age Neaders in setting up and detivering sctivity clubs for younger pupils with poar attendancs and i issues. £130,639
Youth Sport Trust Learning, Sport and Physical Activity Opportunities for Young People in Lelcester, £5,000
An dited informal pr for girls aged b B .and 16 in 5t Halens to prevent school exdusion and
YWCA England & Wates diseng: with education. E55,157
Total - Education Open Grants £2,561,260
Special Initiatives
Higher Education Student Retention
Higher Education Funding Coundl) for England E£480,000}
Support Costs £2,723]
EA82,723
Learning Away
Suppart Costs £33,793
Musical Futures
Suppert Costs £203,474
Learning Futures
J5uppert Costt £127.677
Total - Education and Learning
Programme £3,408,927
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Social Justice Programme
Open Grants
African Healthcare & € Services To emp: BME young people with mental health probtems. £56, 668
Advocacy, representation and training seeking to ensure that the voices of marginalised asylum seeking ¢communities are
Asylum Support & Immigrati Team | brought into the mainstream, £120,000
The satary costs of Body & Soul's Founder and Director, plus a contribution towards a creative-led HIV youth project she is
Body & Soul teading, £127.400|
Prospects is a nine-month development programms Lo support Into tull employ l s Will receive
Brathay Hall Trust training ard support to employ ex-offenders. £110,225
Research project 1o produce life storfes of young people living with severe mental distress who have lso committed one
Centre for Crime and Justice Studies or more serlous violent acts. £101,700|
Citizen Qrganising F To suppodt the organiser past for the Citizens for Sanctuary project, £75,000/
i Bringing together local young asylurn seekers/refuges groups and youth groups involving established residents, in order to
Clitlzenship Foundation empawer theim o jointly engage in positive community action, £120,000
Clapperboard UK 1id To develop a inable business model described through a detailed business plan. £7,335/
Support for the Artistic Management Team in order for it te focus on new areas of work. This will Indude creating new
Dance United wark through partnerships with organisations in the sectal exclusion sector E£240,000
Brard New will broaden opportunities for the ¢ of e, S hill and whill by facilitating fitm
making projects that encourage integration between young peopte and enable them to screen their own stories and
Diversity Films highlight collactive issues. £75,000
Seed funding to carry out research and development for the creation of a free service for marginalised groups and
| Eye Clitlzen intividuats to help them use the soclal media and cithzen journalism to enabla their voices to ba heard. £6,000
The ILRC will work with teachers to enatle students from both migrant and established communities to tell their personal
stories and develop bicgraghies in collabaration with their peers, families snd the wider communities, to help develop #n
International Learning and Research Centra ppreciaticn and value of cultural diversity. B 868]
An initlative tackling antl-social A g changes of behaviour & attituce through posithve young person
Levenmauth YMCA centred activities. £150,000
A three-year project linking creative media producers with marginalised young pecple to create quafity content for new
media platfarms and publlc spaces, The project will assist young people, and itles tg deliver their
Media 13 through social networks, User Generated Content, public exhibition platforms and peer-to-peer technalogies. £169,933
Music for Change is an a collaborative, Innovative, multi-agency project which, through the creation of music, seeks to
promaote soclal incluslon and positivea mental health, 1o give marginalised young people a voice and to supgort their
Music and Change integration into their communities. £75,000
To expfore and record the views of children and young people in Northern Ireland, especially marginafised children, to
Natioral Chitdren's Bureau ensure these are heatd and taken seriously, £233,781
Ta support newly arrlved young people, and young people from me host community, 10 integrata in school and community,
[Ormiston Children 8 Familles Trust life via the and defivery of training lals and £34,996
Support for the Director 1o strategically develop the crganisation in order to maximise the impact of APP's Favela to the
Peopte’s Palace Projects Waord project, and develop understanding of the usa of arts in the social justice field. E150,000
Enable young wormnen at Eastwood Park Prison ta produce expiessive drama based fifms which help to reduce self harming
Positive Images {behaviour and increase well being. £13,000
To support the Graduate Programme which will give young people the skifls 1o set up thelr own soclal enterprises,
Pure Media UK developing a new generation of cultural leaders and entrepreneurs. £198,000
A restarative arts project with marginalised young pecple wha have been referred 1o the Community Mediation Team due
Shetland Arts Development Agency to interpersonal difficulties. £7,500
Marginalised BME young people [13-25) will acquire digital media and IT skills while exploring creativity and self-
ray Chatil exptesslan, to enhance both sell-esteem and employabil E£200,000
This proposal is far a review of existing evidence on what ls known about attitudes to asylum (In the context of
g/ more generally), znd the extent to which future work on changing or improving attitudes in this area can build
[The Diana, Princess of Wales Memorlal Fund on past campaigning work, £2,000
The creation of a positive sodal behaviour contract for yaung peapls to belp them develop and verify the Investments they
[The Foyer Federation need to complete their transition into independence. E176,568
Capacity-building investment to help create a national organisation capakle of delivering social justice through shared
[The Reader reading in smalf local groups. £50,000
Aty 813 based truining and advitacy programme aimed at agencles who work with young male sex workers, including
[Theatre in Prisons & Probation Centre health agencies dealing with KIV Aids. £7%5,000
Funding to develop current pilot work intn a two-year project to enable young refugees and asylum seekers to influence
[Tros Gynnal issues that affect their lives, and to be represented in the future development and delivery of tervices, E182 261
Funding for the executive director to expand a scheol baced incluslon project which aims to tackle domestic and sexual
Juntil the Viclence StopsyTender vialence. £75,000
Urbis Learning focuses on haw pecple lhve together in the city. This phase of their Initlative is the extension and
development of a previously run Moss Side based pilot project ta two other locations in Manchester. Reclaim offers in-
Ubly depth mentorpg, ¢ ing young people 1o make real differenoes 1o their communities, £49,800
To sssist marginalised young people from migrant Roma ith I5gow to and play a more
empowered role in bridging the guif in understanding between them and mere settled communithes in their local area, The
West of Scotiand Regional Equatity Council project will also work with partners in Glasgow to sddress poverty, and discrimination strategicatty at s 5 level. £74,927
Total - Soctal Justice Open Grants £2,843,812
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Special [nitiatives

Right Here
{Mental Health Feundation £60,000:
Support corts E196,823
E256,823
Reading & Librarles Chalk Fund
Support Costs £25,032
|Refugee & Asylum Seeher Fund
Support Costs £26,742,
Undocumented Migrants - Research
Initiative
Suppost Costs E7.569
Returned Grant -£120,256
Total - Sacial Justice Programme £3,039,722
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India Programme

Open Grants
|Arthik Anusandhan Kendra 4 d development in Lalgan] Block £23,221
Association for Rural Advancemant through
¥ Action & Local ant Building institutions that poverty £43,914
Baihar Nari Utthan Sewa Mahlla Mandal Development initlative with the Baiga Tribal Community E41929
80 Tatti Memoral Charitable Trust Pre-primary education for deaf chidren £7,180
(Chitd Surdval India Health pregramme In Saveda Ghevra £7,189
Childhood Enhancement through Tralnlng and
Action (CHETNA} Taking educatlon ¢ the streets E49,456
Independent Commission for Paopia's Rights
and {ICPRD) Youth forums against gender based vikence £29,280
[lanvikas Samafik Sanstha (SVSS) Education support for sodally exduded chitdren EL5,235
Reglonal Centre for Davelapment Cooperation | Uvelihood programme in Nabarangpura E22,001
|Sasth Charitable Trust Integrated davelopmaent of Sankalitnagar slum £95,422
SATHI Reintegrating runsway children on raitway platforms £49419
Shashwat Trust Agricutture development for displaced tribal cammunity £14.874
$hishuadhar - For the Child Non-institutional services for children in distress £8518
Social Actlon for Assoclation and Cavelopment  [Wornen and child develapment in Parbhani £5,714
SWAT - Society Tor Women's Actlon snd
Training nitiative Promoting the right ta tnformation £20,083
The Ant n Northeast Trust Promoling the community’s right to equitable health care E14,934
Txchange rate differences -£723
Total - India Programme £452,742
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Other Grants

{Cisasters Emergency Committee Relief and rehabilitation work in Burma £100,000
[The Helen Hambyn Trust Support for the Heten Hamiyn Trust 2008-2009 £2,000,000
[Wigmaore Hall Trust Danation in memory of Rick Rogers E300°
Total - Other Grants £2,100,500
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Reference and administrative details
and audit report

The annual report (which comprises pages 1 — 51 and the list of trustees, staff and advisers) and financial statements
are prepared on a cormnbined basis for:

s  The Paul Hamlyn (1987) Foundation {the Trust) established on 15 April 1987 by Trust Deed which has been
amended in subsequent years. Registered charity number 327474,

+ Paul Hamlyn Foundation (the Company), formed on 3 February 2004 as a charitable company limited by
guarantee and not having a share capital. Company number 5042279 (registered in England and Wales)
and registered charity number 1102927,

On 6 May 2004, the Trustees of the Trust transferred the activities and all (except £5.2m) of the assets of the Trust to
the Company. On 31 March 2009 the Trust continued to retain assets to the value of £4.7m.

The principal office of both the Trust and the Company is 18 Queen Anne's Gate, London, SW1H 9AA, which is also
the registered office of the Company.

Structure, governance and management

The Board of Trustees, comprising not less than three and not more than ten members, meets at least four times a
year to agree the broad strategy and areas of activity of the Foundation, including consideration of grant-making,
investment, reserves and risk management policies and performance. The Board considers grant applications above
£150,000 (this was increased from £75,000 in 2008}.

The principal committees, which all report to the Board of Trustees, are:

e Arts, Education and Learning and Social Justice Programme Committees {each comprising three trustees
and up to four external advisory members) and the India Programme Committee {comprising three trustees)
meet at least quarterly to consider applications up to £150,000. Decisions on applications to the UK
programmes up to £10,000 may alsc be taken by staff committees and are reported through the Programme
Committee to the Board of Trustees.

e Finance and [nvestment Committee, comprising five trustees and two extemnal advisory members, meets
quarterly to consider investment strategy, manager appointment and performance, and twice a year to
consider financial matters,

s Remuneration Committee, comprising the Chair and the Chairman of the Finance and Investment
Committee, meets at least once a year.

The day to day management of the Foundation is delegated by the Board of Trustees to the Director.

The Board keeps the skill requirement for Trustees under review. The Trustees create 2 long list of appropriate
people to meet identified gaps. A sub-committee interviews a shortlist of candidates. Trustees are initially
appointed only until the next AGM by the Appointor provided for in the Articles of Association. The renewal of
appointments (for a period of up to three years) is made by all trustees acting as members of the company. The
current Appointor is Jane Hamlyn, who was designated so under Paul Hamlyn's Will. The induction process for
any newly appointed trustee comprises a meeting with the Chair, and meeting(s} with the Director and other
staff, together with receipt of a pack containing copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association, the
annual report and accounts, board and committee minutes and Charity Commission guidance notes.
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Trustees have identified and considered the major strategic, operational and financial risks to which the
Foundation is exposed. They are satisfied with the procedures which have been established to review these
risks regularly, and with the actions taken to mitigate exposure to them.

Trustees have considered the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and confirm their view that the
Foundation’s objects and aims as set out on page 1 are in afignment with the public benefit requirements of the
2008 Charities Act. The Trustees Report on pages 1 to 37 demonstrates the activities of the Foundation and
how they meet the Principles as defined in the Act.

Statement of trustees’ responsibilities

The trustees {who are also directors of the Paul Hamlyn Foundation for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable taw and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the trustees te prepare the financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and of the incoming resources and application
of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charitable group for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the trustees are required to:

» Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

* QObserve the methods and principles in the Charities SORP,

s Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

«  Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reascnable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and
the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

In so far as the trustees are aware:

o Thereis no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and
« The trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The maintenance and integrity of the Paul Hamlyn Foundation’s website is the responsibility of the trustees; the work
carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented
on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of the Paul Hamlyn Foundation

We have audited the financial statements of the Paul Hamlyn Foundation for the year ended 31 March 2009 which
comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes.
The financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditors

The trustees' (who are also the directors of the company for the purposes of company law) responsibilities for
preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for
and only for the charitable company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act
1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as ta whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and whether the information given in the Trustees' Annual
Report is consistent with those financial statements.

We also report to you if, in our opinion, the charity has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all
the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding trustees’
remuneration and transactions with the charity is not disclosed.

We read the Trustees' Annual Report and consider the impilications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements within it.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducled our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the trustees in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the charity's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to cbtain all the informaticn and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
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Opinion
In our opinion

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of affairs of the charity as at 31 March 2009, and of its incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure and cash flows, for the year then ended;

« the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and
- the information given in the Trustees’ Annua! Report is consistent with the financial statements.

PM' MWW v P

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

London 30" Tuma LOOH
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Financial Review

Endowment fund and investment portfolio

The Endowment fund represents the original and subsequent gifts by Paul Hamlyn, both in his lifetime and under the
terms of his will, together with the net gains arising from the related investment assets. The trustees have discretion
to make disbursements from the Endowment fund in circumstances which they consider appropriate. Investment
returns from the endowment investment portfolio are used to finance grant-making and other work.

The Foundation has wide investment powars which are specified in its Memorandum of Association. Investment
policy is set by the Board of Trustees, but authority to decide strategy is delegated to the Finance and Investment
Committee. During the year under review, in order to bolster the resources available to trustees, the decision was
taken to appoint an Investment Director, who would act as an executive officer to the Finance and Investment
Committee. The committee, with input from senior staff and consultants, sets asset allocation and engages
professional managers running a multi-asset, multi-manager portfolio. Most of the managers have discretionary
mandates although the direct property portfolio is run on an advisory basis.

The Foundation's investment palicy is to:
+  Maintain in the long run the real purchasing power of the Endowment fund.

« [nvestin a diverse range of assets which are most likely to give good total retums in the long term, in order
to maximise the total real value of the amounts available for grant-making and other work.

e Manage volatility as far as possible, while accepting that a degree of volatility is concomitant with seeking
high returns.

In the year under review, the Finance and Investment Committee continued to increase the broad spread of
investments whilst continuing modest commitment to hedge funds, venture/private equity investments and specialist
cash and currency management. Whilst this continuing move into alternative assets is likely to reduce dividend and
investment income at least in the short term, it is aimed at increasing total returns on a long-term basis and
controlling the overall volatility of the portfolio.

Significant developments in the year included:

s Adding to cash held in the porifolio by reducing global and UK equity exposure in view of the deteriorating
economic outlook.

s  Augmenting our investments in hedge funds by adding three new managers, including those who specialise
in distressed debt.

« Adding exposure on an opportunistic basis to new venture funds, as well as a commodity manager, and an
emerging currency specialist investment vehicle.

* Re-organising the Foundation's bond holdings to more closely align with the selected benchmarks.

The main asset allocation changes to the Endowment fund during the year were:
s  Reducing publicly quoted equities by allocating money away from equity managers. This, in combination

with market falls, resulted in our equity allocation reducing from 56% to 40%. Combined with the defensive
action taken in 2007/08, this helped protect the averall portfolio from the worst of the bear market.
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e In the summer of 2008, action was taken to protect the value of the portfolio by moving circa 49% of the
cash assets held into US dollars and Euros. Subsequent to this, the Finance and Investment Committee
established a formal currency neutral position for cash management geing forward.

« Overall exposure to property at year end was 5%, hedge and venture funds 10%, and fixed interest and
cash 45%.

The Foundation's endowment investment portfolic fell by about 8% for the year, mainly due to the fall in equity and
property assets. At the end of the year the endowment's value was broadly in line with the trustees aim of
preserving its real purchasing power (ie: Paul Hamlyn's bequests adjusted for RP1).

Unrestricted fund

The Foundation’s unrestricted fund is used to finance the Foundation's tangible fixed assetsiworking capital, and to
provide a short-term buffer for grant-making and other costs. The trustees intend that the unrestricted fund should be
approximately six months of grant-making expenditure. At the end of the year the fund remains higher than this
target. It will be reduced in future years as income levels decrease as the investment portfolio is weighted to holdings
which focus on capital gain and increased grant-making, specifically on special initiatives, takes effect.

Expenditure

Grants awarded were lower than in 2007/08 (£13.4m compared with £14.5m) as decisions on some special initiatives
were detayed until mid-2009 for operational reasons. However, overall awards on special inttiatives have remained at
25% of all awards, excluding funding for the Helen Hamtyn Trust, as in 2007/08. The Foundation remains on course
to achieve the trustees’ strategic objective to increase the proportion of expenditure on special initiatives in the
current planning cycle {to 2012). Open grants awards have consequently remained at 75% of awards made.

Support cost expenditure has increased from £1.9m to £2.0m largely due to staff changes and recruitment costs.
Investment management fees have reduced slightly in line with reductions in portfolio value.

Financial risks

The Foundation’s principal material financial risks, including foreign exchange exposures, relate to its investment
portfolio and are in line with similar long-term endowment funds in the sector. QOverall investment risk management is
predicated on running a diversified portfolio of high quality assets across a wide variety of asset classes and markets.
The longer term strategic asset mix is set by the Finance and Investment committee, with input from Cambridge
Associates and others. Individua! investment mandates are awarded to specialist managers after scrutiny by the
Finance and Investment Committee with input from various sources.

Management changes

After five years as Finance Director, Jonathan Sheidon left Paul Hamlyn Foundation in 2008 to take up a position at
the Health Foundation. | am grateful to him for his work. His resignation gave trustees the opportunity to think about
the twin functions of Finance and Investments with the result that we have taken the opportunity to separate the roles.
We have appointed Lucy Palfreyman as Finance and Resources Director and Richard Robinson as Investment
Director. Both have long experience in their refated but distinct areas of specialisation and we look forward to
working with them.

Bob Boas, Finance and Investment Committee Chairman
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Statement of Financial Activities
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Incoming resources from generated funds
'Legacy income
Benation income
Investment income

Total incoming resources

Resources expended
Investment management
Grant-making
Governance

Total resources expended
Net incoming resources and

net income for the year

Other recagnised gains and losses

Realised and unrealised gains (losses) on fixed asset investments

Net movement in funds

Funds at 1 April 2008

Funds at 31 March 2009

2009 2009 2009 2008
Notes Unrestricted Endowment Total Total
fund fund
£m £m £m Em
. . - 0.235
0.002 - 0.002 .

2 14.221 - 14.221 20.280
14.223 - 14,223 20,515

3 1.916 - 1.916 2.205
4 15.418 - 15.418 16.347
6 0.030 - 0.030 0.027
17.364 - 17.364 18.579

(32.141) - {3.141) 1.936
8 - (44.106 ) {44.106 ) {36.964)
{3.141) {44.106 ) (47.247) (35.028)

19.444 494.068 513.512 548.540

16.303 449.962 466.265 513.512

The Statement of Financial Activities includes the Income and Expenditure Account and the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

The notes cn pages 47 to 51 form part of these financial statements
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Balance Sheet
at 31 March 2009

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investment assets

Currant assets
Debtors
Other investments
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors falling due after more than one year

Net assets

Funds at 31 March 2009

Notes

10

11

12

2009 2009 2009 2008
Unrestricted Endowment Total Total
fund fund
£m fm £Em £m
0.149 - 0.148 0.196
- 449,909 449,909 494,070
0.14% 449,909 450.058 494.266
1.480 - 1.480 1.464
28.620 0.066 28.686 31.127
0.133 - 0.133 0.014
30.233 0.066 30.299 32.605
{9.042) (0.013 } {5.055) (8.539 )
21.151 0.053 21.244 24.066
21.340 449,962 471.302 518.332
{5.037) - {5.037) {4.820)
16.303 449.962 466.265 513.512
16.303 449.962 466,265 513.512

The notes an pages 47 to 51 form part of these financial statements
The financial statements on pages 44 to 51 were approved by the trustees on 30th June 2009 and were signed on their

behalf by:

O fonty

lang Hamlyn
Tristee

s

Bob Boas
Trystee
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Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 March 2009

Net incoming/{outgoing) resources for the year
Less investrment income earned
Add back investment management charges
Less legacy income
Add back depreciation
{increase) in debtors

Increase/{decrease] in creditors due within one year
Increase/{decrease) in creditors falling due after more than ane year

Net cash inflow/{outflow} from operating activities as defined by FRS 1

Returns on Investment
Investment income received
Investment management charges paid
Capltal expenditure and financtal Investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Sale of tangible fixed assets

Purchase of fixed asset and other investmeants
Sale of fixed asset and other investments

Increase/{decrease) In cash for the year before finanting

Financing
Legacy income

Increase [decrease) In cash for the year

Cash at bank and in hand at 1 April 2008

Maverment during the year

Cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2009

2009 2009 2009 2008
Unrestricted fund Endowment fund Total Total
£m £m £m £m
3.141) - {3.141) 1.936
{14.221) - (14.221} {20.280)
1915 . 1.916 2.205
. - - (0.235)
0.102 - 0.102 0.144
(0.020) - {0.020) (¢.075)
0.603 - 0.603 {8.536)
0.217 - 0.217 2.737
{14.544) - (14.544) {22.104)
14,225 - 14.225 20.885
(2.003) - {2.003) {2.219)
{0.056) - (0.056) {0.043})
4.001 - 0001 0.001
- [250.864) (250.864) {1,295.263)
2441 250919 253.380 1,298.418
0.064 0.055 0.119 {0.325)
- - 0235
0.064 0.055 0.119 {0.090)
0.014 - 0.014 3.104
0.064 0.055 0.119 {0.090}
0.078 0.055 0.133 0.014
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2009

1 Principal accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis and in accordance with applicable
Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom and the
Companies Act 1985. A summary of the more important
accounting policies, which have been applied
consistently, is set out below.

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the Statement of Recommended Practice
Accounting and Reporting by Charities” issued in March
2005, and the historical cost convention as modified

by the revaluation of fixed asset investments.

The foundation has two funds, their operation is
explained on page 42 to 43.

Details of both entities which are included in these
accounts are given in the reference and administrative
details on page 38.

{b) Incoming resources

All incoming resources are included in the Statement of
Financial Activities when the Foundation is legally
entitied to the funding and the amount can be
quantified with reasonable certainty.

(c) Resources expended
Resources expended are the cost of generating funds,
grant-making and governance costs.

Investment management fees are the only cost of
generating funds.

Grant-making represents the costs of activities in
furtherance of the Foundation's objects and includes the
grants awarded by the Foundation, and the support costs
associated with them. Where they cannot be directly
derived, support costs are allocated between grant-
making activities on the basis of the value of grants
awarded. This represents a change in methodology

from 2007/08 where allocation was on the basis of the
number of grants awarded and their monetary value.

Governance costs are the costs associated with the
strategic direction and corporate management of the
Foundation and include the cost of providing the
infrastructure which allows the Foundation to operate and
to generate information required for public accountability.

Grants are recognised when they have been awarded and
the grantee has been informed.

{d) Tangible fixed assets
All of the tangible fixed assets are held for charitable use.

The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost,
together with any incidental expenses of acquisition.
Tangible fixed assets with a cost of less than £500 are not
capitalised.

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of
tangible fixed assets on a straight line basis over the
expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned.
The Foundation plans to surrender the lease of its offices
in the next year or so and therefore shortened the
expected life of certain assets in the prior year. The effect
of this change is an increase of £0.017m on the
depreciation charge in each of the years ending 31 March
2009 and 2010. The principal useful economic lives used
for this purpose are:

No of years
Furniture and fittings 4t012
Computer equipment a
Leasehold property (life of the lease) 12

{e) Fixed asset investments

Listed investments are stated at their market value at the
year end. The Statement of Financial Activities includes
unrealised gains and losses arising from the revaluation of
the investment portfolio in the year and realised net gains
and losses arising on disposals.

Investment properties held directly have been valued by
Cushman and Wakefield, an independent firm of
international property consultants and valuators. Pooled
property investments are stated at net asset value as
calculated by the various managers and reviewed by
Cushman and Wakefield.

The carrying value of unlisted investments is the trustees’
best estimate of the market value at the balance sheet
date.

(f) Foreign currencies

Income denominated in foreign currencies is recorded at
the rate of exchange ruling on the date of receipt. Foreign
currency investments are valued at their year-end market
value translated into sterling at the year-end exchange
rate or at the contract rate where foreign currency
investments are subject {0 an underlying hedge. All
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gains or losses on translation are taken to the Statement The Foundation makes payments to the defined

of Financial Activities in the year in which they occur. contribution personal pension plans of all its employees.
The payments are based on a salary percentage and are
{g) Operating leases charged to the Statement of Financial Activities in the

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a period to which they relate.

straight line basis over the lease term.
(i} Irrecoverable value added tax

(h) Pension costs Irrecoverable VAT is included as part of the expenditure to
which it relates.
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2. Investment income

2009 2008

£m £fm

UK equities 2,583 7.180
Overseas equities 5.307 3.532
Flxed interest securities 0.000 5.327
UK investment property 1.610 1.679
Term deposits 4,498 2.562
Unlisted Investments 0.223 -
Total 14.221 20.280

Fixed income: The managerment techniques utilised for the specialist flxed interest portfolle of the Foundation do not make precisa attribution
between capltal and income. In 2008 the capltal gain on fixed incoma securitles was treated ag income. The accounting treatment for 2009 and
golng forward is to Include the capital gain {loss} in the assst value and this is included In note B.

3. Cost of generating funds

2009 2008
£m £m
Ipvestment management fees and cansultancy 1.916 2.205

With respect to investments In hedge funds and private equity funds, the management agreements of the underlying funds provide for compensation
to the respective managers in the form of management and performancs fees detenminad as a percentage of nat assets.
All feas are deducted from the funds’ assats and are reflected in the nat asset values reported.

4. Charitable activites: Grant-making

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the follewlrg charitabla donations were awarded by the Foundation:

2009 2008 009 2008
Grants Support Grant- Grant-
awarded costs making making
£m £m £m £m
Grants awarded by vatue
Arts ' 1415 0.651 5.086 5607
Education and Learning 3.409 0,504 3.913 3.803
Soclal Justice 3.039 0.49¢ 3.529 3,883
India 0.453 0.077 0,530 0.75%
Othar Grants 2.101 0.279 2.380 2.295
13.417 2,001 15.418 16.347
Numnber of grants awarded
Ans 51 55
Education and Learning 36 58
Social Justice N 51
tndia . 16 18
Other Grants 3 4
137 186

A schedyle of the grants awarded in each programme area is glven elsewhere in this report. All grants were awarded
to isatiens with tha ption of £0.360m (2008: £0.360m) awarded to eight {2008: eight} individuals.

S. Support costs

2009 2008

£m £m

Gross salarles 0.835 0.759
Social security costs 0.083 0.084
Gther penslon costs 0.058 0.095
Other employment costs 0.058 0.038
Total payroll and related costs 1.074 0.976
Dperations support 0.365 0.186
Property expenses 0.195 0.357
Cemmunications 0.052 0.044
Office expanses 0.212 0.165
Depreciation and loss on disposals 0.103 0.144
2.001 1372

Suppert eosts reflect the management structure of the organisation. Operations support includes the costs of temporary staff and recruitment.

The average number of persons employed by the Foundation during the year was 21 {2008: 19). The number of
employees whose salaries, including any ex gratis payments, were above £60,00C was:

2003 2008

Number Number

£60,000 to £70,000 1 -
£90,001 to £100,000 1 2
£110,001 to £120,000 1 -

Durlng the year the Foundation made contributlons of £28,231(2008: £36,208) to the personal pension plans

of these employess.

The trustees are not amployed by the Foundation and do not recelve any emoluments in respect of their services.
Travel expenses of £1,643 (2008: £3,752) were reimbursed to four {2008: three] trustees during the year.
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6.Governance costs

2009 2008
£m £m
Audit feas 0018 0,018
Legal and profassional fees 0,002 -
Offlce expensas 0.010 0.00%
0.030 0.027
7. Tanglble fixed assets
Leasehald Furniture Computer Tatal
property and fittings squipment
fm £m £m £m
Cost
As at 1 April 2008 0511 0.139 0.214 0.854
Additlons 0.000 0.003 0.053 0.056
Disposals 0.000 -3,002 -0.013 -0.015
As at 31 March 2009 0.511 0.140 0.254 0.905
Depreciation
As at 1 April 2004 Q424 c.050 0,154 0.668
Charga for tha year 0.043 0.017 0,042 0.102
Disposals 0.000 0,002 -0.012 40.014
As at 31 March 2009 0.467 0.105 0.184 0.756
Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2008 0.044 0.035 0.070 0.149
Asat 1 April 2008 0.087 0.049 0.060 0.196
8. Fixed asset investments 2009 2008
£m £m
Market valus at 1 April 2003 494.070 530.799
Purchases 250.864 1,295.263
Sales (250919} (1,295.028 )
Nat reallsed and unrealised losses {44.106 } {35.964 )
Masket Value as at 31 March 2009 449.909 454.070
Investmants at markat valus comprised: 2009 2008
£m £m
UK equitles 32.251 96.357
Overseas equitles 146.433 179.103
Fixed interest securitles 114.132 110.000
UK Investment property 21.386 30.875
Alternative sacuritias 36.971 20.182
Term deposits 88,305 51.643
Unlisted investrents 10.431 5910
Total {induding cash held for investment by managers) 449.909 494.070
Trustees consider that any Incldental cash balance held by an Investment manager Is an integral part of its asset
atlocation and have included It in the appropriate assat class,
9. Debtors
2009 2008
£m £m
Prepaymants and other debtors 0.221 0.201
Accrued investmant income 1.255 1.263
1.430 1.464
10. Other investments 2009 2009 2009 2008
t ted fund fund Total Total
£m £m £m £m
Fixed Interest securities 0466 - 0466 12.597
Cash deposits 28.154 0.066 28.220 18.530
28.620 0.066 28.686 31.127
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11. Creditors falling due within one year 2009 2009 2009 2008

Unrestricted fund Endowment fund Tatal Total
£m £m £m £m
Grants payabla B.234 - 8.234 7.652
Prapaid rental income 0.313 - 0.313 0.313
Investment management fees accrual 124 - 0.124 0.211
Accruals and craditors 6.357 0.013 0.37¢ 0.306
Taxation and sacial sacurity contributions 0.014 - 0.014 {.057
9.042 0.013 9.055 8.539
12, Creditors falling due after more than one year
2009 2009 2009 2008
Unrestricted fund Endowment fund Total Total
£m £m £m £m
Grants payable In ane to two years 3.744 - 3.744 3.713
Grants payable after two yaars 1.293 - 1.293 1.107
5.037 - 5.037 4.820
13, Spedial initiative expenditure
The Foundation establishes special inltfatives In order to mest its alms. Periadically the trustees all resources

to these Inltlativas. The current total allocations, and tha amounts expended in this year and earller years, and the
amounts which may be expanded in future years, are shown below.

Earlier years This year Future years Toral

£m £m £m £m

Award for Artists 0420 0,424 1.256 2,100
Breakthreugh Fund 1.292 1.198 2010 4.500
Higher Education Retention 0.000 0.483 0.117 0.600
Jane Attenborough Dance in Education 0.175 £.062 0.038 0.27%
Learning Away [Residentia} Experiences) 0.00C 0.034 2.223 2.257
Learning Futures 0.038 0.128 1.119 1.285
Musical Futures / MuFu Transitions 1.786 0,203 0.78% 2778
Reading and Libraries Challenge Fund 3.248 0.025 0.025 3.288
Refugee and Asylum Seeker Fund ¢ 333z 0.027 0.015 3.374
Right Here C.001 0.257 1.228 1.486
Young Undocumented Migrants Research 0.184 0.008 0.020 0.212
10.476 2.849 8.330 22.155

14, Operating lease commitments
The Foundation aecuples its offices under a lease which expires in 2012, The current rent 's £0.189m inclushe

of VAT {2008: £0.176m).
The Foundatien has a tenant's option to break the lease by giving six months' natice.
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